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Independent Auditor’s Report
[Translation from Russian original]

To the Shareholders of

Bank ICBC (JSC)

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying annual financial statements of Bank ICBC (joint-stock company)
(hereinafter - Bank ICBC (JSC), the Bank), which comprise the balance sheet (a public disclosure form) for
2017, statement of financial results (a public disclosure form) for 2017, report on capital adequacy level to
cover risks, size of loan loss provision and provision for possible losses on other assets (a public disclosure
form) as at January 1, 2018, information on mandatory ratios, financial leverage indicator and short-term
liquidity ratio {(a public disclosure form) as at January 1, 2018, statement of cash flows (a public disclosure
form) as at January 1, 2018, and explanatory notes to the annual financial statements for 2017.

in our opinion, the annual financiat statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Bank ICBC (JSC) as at January 1, 2018, its financial performance and its cash flows for 2017 in accordance
with Russian accounting standards,

Emphasis of Matter

Without modifying our opinion we draw attention to Note 3.5. of the financial statements, which describes
adjusting events after the reporting date not recognized in the financial statements, including unrecognized
additional accrual of provisions for loans, other assets and contingent liabilities, which have a material effect
on the annual financial statements of the Bank for 2017, including the financial result for 2017 in the amount
of 771,602 ths rubles.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (1SAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Annual
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the audited entity in accordance with the
Rules of Independence of the Auditors and Audit Organizations and The Code of Professional Ethics of the
Auditors, which are in accordance with International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for
the Annual Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the annual financial statements in
accordance with Russian accounting standards, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of annual financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the entity or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the entity’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Annual Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the annual financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
annual financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

a) identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the annual financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

b) obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the audited entity’s internal control,

c) evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management of the audited entity;

d) conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the audited entity's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report fo the related
disclosures in the annual financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the audited entity to cease its ability to continue as a going concern;

e) evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the annual financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the annual financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance of the audited entity with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

Report on audit according to the requirements of Federal Law No. 395-|
dated December 2, 1990 “On banks and banking activities”

Management of Bank ICBC (JSC) is responsible for compiiance by the Bank with the mandatory
requirements set by the Bank of Russia as well as for internal control and organization of risk management
systems of the Bank to meet the requirements set by the Bank of Russia to the systems like this.

According to Article 42 of Federal Law No. 395-| dated December 2, 1990 “On banks and banking activities”
during the audit of the annual financial statements for 2017 we verified whether.

o Bank ICBC (JSC) was in compliance with the mandatory requirements set by the Bank of Russia as at
January 1, 2018;

» internal control and organization of risk management systems of Bank ICBC (JSC) were in compliance
with the requirements set by the Bank of Russia to the systems like this.

The said audit was limited to such procedures selected based on our judgement as requests, analysis,
document examination, comparison of requirements, order and methodologies approved by Bank ICBC
(JSC) with the ones set by the Bank of Russia as well as restatement and comparison of amounts and other
information.

The audit has established the following:
1) as for meeting the mandatory requirements set by Bank ICBC (JSC):

o values of the mandatory ratios set by the Central Bank of Russia as of January 1, 2018 were within the
limits set by the Central Bank of Russia.

We did not conduct any procedures as to accounting records of the Bank other than procedures we
believed were necessary for the purpose of expressing our opinion on whether the annual financial
statements of ICBC (JSC) presented fairly, in all material respects, its financial position as of January 1,
2018, financial performance and cash flows for 2017 in accordance with Russian accounting standards for
credit institutions;

2) internal control and organization of risk management systems of Bank ICBC (JSC) were in compliance
with the requirements set by the Bank of Russia to the systems like this:

a) in accordance with the requirements and recommendations of the Bank of Russia as at January 1, 2018
the internal audit service of the Bank reported to the Bank's Board of Directors, the risk management
departments of the Bank did not report to the departments assuming the respective risks, the chiefs of the
internal audit service and the risk management departments of the Bank meet the qualifications set by the
Bank of Russia,

:
:
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b) as at January 1, 2018 the effective internal documents of the Bank indicating the methodologies for
identification and management of credit, operational, market, interest rate, legal, liquidity and goodwill risks
relevant for the Bank were approved by the Board of Directors of the Bank in accordance with the
requirements and recommendations of the Bank of the Russia, methodologies for stress-testing were
approved by the Management Board of the Bank;

c) as at January 1, 2018 the Bank had the reporting system for credit, operational, market, interest rate,
legal, liquidity and goodwill risks relevant for the Bank as well as for the equity of Bank ICBC (JSC);

d) frequency and order of reports prepared by the risk management departments and the internal audit
service of the Bank during 2017 as fo management of credit, operational, market, interest rate, legal,
liquidity and goodwill risks of the Bank were in compliance with the Bank's internal documents; the said
reports comprised the results of observation of efficiency measurement of the Bank's respective
methodologies conducted by the Bank’s risk management departments and the internal audit service as
well as recommendatlons to improve them;

e) as at January 1, 2018 the powers of the Board of Directors of Bank ICBC (JSC} and its executive bodies
comprised control over the Bank's compliance with risk limits and capital adequacy set by the Bank’s
internal documents. For the purpose of control over efficiency of risk management procedures applied in the
Bank and order of their application during 2017 the Board of the Directors of the Bank and its executive
bodies discussed on a regular basis reports prepared by the risk management departments and the internal
audit service, and dealt with the offered measures o remove defects.

The procedures in respect of internal control and organization of risk management systems of Bank ICBC
(JSC) have been conducted only to verify whether internal control and organization of risk management
systems of the the Bank are in compliance with the requirements set by the Bank of Russia to the systems
like this.
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"’( [/ }njb/éms of Charter
audit qualification certificate 01-001230, primary
registration number of entry 21606043397

N.P. Mushkarina

audit qualification certificate 01-000988 dated
November 19, 2012, primary registration number of
entry 21606041880

Date of independent Auditor's Report:
March 30, 2018
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Audited entity

Name:

Bank ICBC (joint-stock company)

Place of business:

29 Serebryanicheskaya naberezhnaya, Moscow,
109028, Russian Federation

Official registration:

Registered by the Central Bank of the Russian
Federation on August 30, 2007, registration number
3475.

The registration entry was made in the Unified State
Register of Legal Entities on August 30, 2007 under
primary state registration number (OGRN)
1077711000157.
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Auditor

Name:
FBK, LLC
Place of business:

44/1, 2AB, Myasnitskaya St, Moscow, 101990,
Russian Federation.

Official registration:

State Registration Certificate series 103 3
No. 484,683 PI1 issued by Moscow Registration
Chamber on November 15, 1993. The registration
entry was made in the Unified State Register of Legal
Entities on July 24, 2002 under primary state
registration number (OGRN) 1027700058286,

Membership in self-regulatory organization of
auditors:

Self-regulatory organization of auditors Association
"Sodruzhestvo”.

Number in the register of self-regulatory
organization of auditors:

Certificate of membership in the self-regulatory
organization of auditors Association "Sodruzhestvo"
No. 7198, number in the register - 11506030481.
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Bank teporbing form

PR cwrrmpm———— Gamemmaedvanmaamann P +
Territory code | Credit institu:ion {its branch) i
| oxato Funmnnmn —mm e

] ] code OXPO  |registration number |

| { {/ sequence number) |

145286580
-

INFORMATION ON MAMDATORY RATICS, PINANGIAL LEVERAGE INDICATOR
AND SHORT-TERM LIQUIDITY RATIO
(public disclogure form}
aAg of 0%,01.2018

Credit cxrganization
Bank ICBC (jeimt stock company)
/ Rank ICBC (J3C)

Addresa (location) of the credit organdzation
109028 Moscow, Serebrysnicheakaya nab, 2%

Code OKGD 0405813
Quarterly (Anpual)

gection 1. Mandatory ration

fammmnn 4oamm Mwmmmm——— e m————— wammmm—amme ey P L L L L L P e TP R A LT ST PR EE mramana
|uine | Narrative i Reference | Regulatoxry 1
] | numbezr {requirement, [--------
jnunber| H % | a® of the reporting | am of the neginning }
§ 3 date of the reporting year |
[ 1 |
+ +
| 1 |
+ + +
jCora capital adaquacy ratlo (M1.1), ¥ ] i
{with regard to & banking group {(H20.1} | ] i i
L LR T L R ke D R L LR LT S EREC LT E PR SR +
j#ain capital adequacy zatic of m Bank (¥ | ! | |
fwith regaxd to a banking group(#20.2) 7.4 i 5.0 28,7 10.3]
+ Fmmmomrmm e cwmnammm—aa P it hermomm———— +
Bguity (capital)zatlo of a Rank [H1,0}, | | 1
with regard to a banking group (H20,0) §.15 7.2 ‘ 6.0{ 37,6} 20.3{
| |
+ -+ + +
{Equity (capital)} ratio of a non-banking credit i ] { }
|organization, which has right to perform wire | 1 |
{tranafers without opening an account and | |
{is related to other banking operationa (H1,3) H {
|
e +

|

+ +
] 8 {Ratic of the maximum zipk per one hoz:owe: or {7.1 25. Dil&aximum } 17.1] daximum ] 19,8
{ |group of related borrowers (HE) i mementmmmmm———— wammmm—. [=nwomammmaaaan wemmm———
|

[ 9 |Ratlo of the maximum large cr:ditvexpcau:u | H t { H
H { (47}, with regard to a banking group(H22) {7.1 i 8049,0} 190.14 269.2]

10 Ratio of the maximum exposure to credit, bank
guaranteea and wureties, provided by the Bank
to ita shareholders {participants)

(1s.1) 7.1 50,0 5.3 19,8
gemm——— e #Rmmm———— Mpampm s mm——— e mmmeeme—an - LER LR LR et B LR e LR T +
| 33 |Ratio of the aggregate rigk cn tho Bank’a insiders | t §

{H1D, 1) i | 3.0 0.0} 0.0)
4mmm——n Armmmm mm——— weAmmm——— D L L B LA L LRSI EELEE LA trmmm—— Fumermmanmn— LS SLEEELEES] whAmmmm-—- evpmapmm.—— AL TEELEEL LS R

12 Ratio of use of equity (vapital}of the Bank for
scquisition of ahares (stakea)in other legal
entities (H12) , ratio of use of aquity (capital)
of a banking group for acquisition of mharse
{gstakxes)in the parent credit organizstiocn

by a banking group and participants

banking yroup of ahares (stakes)of other legal
entitien (H23) i i 26.0 0.0 0,0

-
13 Ratio of liquid agsets with matuzity within the
next 30 calendar days to the sum of liabilities
of the ncea-banking ¢redit organization fox
gettlementsy, RNCO (H15) 0.0 0.0 0.0
PRI

14 tiquidity ratic of a non-banking cradit
organization with the right to make wire tranafery

without agcount opening snd related to that {
other banking apasrations {H15,1} {
i 0.0 9.0 0.0
ELLEAL AL IR AL LI AL LSl Ll Ll el il i #pesemacew heasame fovessmmameren L bbbl bl g Armmm - LR R i bl bt derssssnesiuannssranenranan +
i 15 ma.t!.a of the maximum aggzcgate aize of loans ! i i | ]
i fto customers - participanta of esttlemesnts to | i i | i
| {completed settlements (H16) | t 0.0 0.0l 0.0
dmmmvempm e wrmm—————n + +
| 16 |Ratio of loans made by RNKO on ita own behalf i | H 1 ]
i and at its own expenae to customers, except for | i | { {
i fcuetome:a pu:tlcipanbs of aettlements(H1i6.1) I i 0.0 0,0} 0,0}
L L L L EETEEEP TR wwmmmn——e wwammm— Hammmrma e D B R PP LT D R LT D e E LT P +
[ 17 ]'rhe minimum x‘al:iu of mortgage ¢overage mise and | { | ] i
i aize of hond ilawue secured by mortgage i f i H H
{ | { 0.0] 0.0f 0.0}
Ammmnee D R e P T P EE PR mmmmm—nae R REETEET permmm————— wammm———— wrdmmmm———— R REE CECE T maam . D Rt halt R LT e
] llatio of the maximum risk gize per one | { § H
i rolated person (a group of related persons) { { { {
| | (#25) {7.1 | 20.0] $.3} 0.9]
FECEE LR T TR wemm——— EERET TP wmmm e wammm—eeaa S CET TP R e B bt R Lt B et Hmmmmmmmmm e mmae— e P
gection 2. Information en finmancial leverage indicatox
deotign 2.1 Calculation of balance gheet assots aize and off-balance sheet claims at xlak
For calculation of financial leverazge indicator
FECEEe deammmnm———— wrmmm——— hmmmmm———— wmmmmemen mamnamaan LT Lt +
[Lins | Narraticn Reference
number Amount,
{number |

]
ths rublem i
i
|

{Total asgets as pex the Balance pheet (publig
|disciosure form)




iz Adjuatment regarding investments iatae capital of | not applicable
i credit, Einanclal, ingurance of other organizations for repoxting
i as their reperting data is included into { of a credit

i congolidated financlal statements, but not organization,

i ineluded into ealculation of equity capital aize,| aB of a legal
! mandatary ratios and Jimit sizes for open currency entity

] positiaons of banking group
i

J S fmmemacmmemseccmceMeameembasecmceamSemueasseenn dm e [ wmm———— wammm——— wmmgmmeeanmm e ——n .t
i 3 Adjustment regarding fiduclary asssots recordsd as 0
i per aceounting rules but not included into
i #inancial leverage calculation
i
LEREEEs R e L E DL L LTt & R bt b e b greomeeeecnaae +
1 4  |adjustment regarding derivative financial | et
i Hnatmmence (npx) i } ]
$Haccmefesacccommsscectessaceceassccebeasson PRI, S mmmmmmeammmmecuamehmmmenmme e P
] s JAdjuatment zegazdlng lending op:rntions ] H 1]
i by meana of securitiss
P hmmhammenmEAcm—awAmnc—ceran
|6 Adjustment regarding bringing to a credit 17.2 § 8251710
] eguivalent of credit-related contingencies ] {
i i |
+ +
| i7. |
+ + +
{8 |!n\-.a1 balam:u sheet agaetz and off-balance gheet {7.2 i 55568117}
jelaims at zisk, with oonsideration of adjustments| I
{fox finmnlal loverage cal:ulat}.an H i ]
e wrmmmmm e am——n PR memmmmann Fmcemmmmmmwnm———- wemm———— B e +
gection 2.2 Calculation table for finangial leverage
RSP tmne- PRSI PR - Amammecuammmaan P E - EE—— wnmm————— mmsamenapemmccesammmane. +
j Dine | Narrzation Refersnce {
! nunber Amount,
tha xubles

|

|

............... [
! 2 {Adjustment to reduce the amount by the sum of f 35405, 0[
| ]
1 ] 1 i
Hrammmagmennmann [ - Mmmeeaemmmteedamacameamaefeanamescdmacmassemacm=sean——n [ +
{3 fTotal Balance zheet assets at rigk subjsct to 1 47314407.0f

+
]
|
+
|
i {balances for reduction of core capital sources i
|
+
|
|

i {the adjustment (difference between lines 1 and 2)

i Rigk on operations with dexivative financial instruments (DFX)

Fommsm g manan

—umm e

} 4 {Toral cuzrrent credit riak on operaticns with DRY |
j(lesn calculated variation mazgin}

5 E!otul potential credit :isk on opu‘a:iuns wj.th
|DRI per counterparty

+

|

i

+ +
§ Adjustment for the gize of the nominal amount of not applicsble i
{ the provided collateral on opexations with DFI, as per Ruspian |
{ {subject to a balance sheet wxite-off in jaceounting rules
t

|

!

+

i

|

{aocordance with accaunting rules

]

1

+

7 jseducing adjuatment to the amount of txanaferred |
[variatlnn margin (\mder defined circumstances) i | §

+

;

>4

A aracmaeesnaan P wne=
[ s [ndj\mtn\unt to r_he siza of claims of the Bank,
] {participant of clearing, to a central counterparty]
| | toz execucing cugtomera’ deals
Hewaceagaua
] 9 {eredit rink adjustment regarding the underlying |
l [agaet on ipsued credit-rolated DFI
+ [
] 10 [Reduczing adjustment regarding issued crsdit- i
i !rnlated eI
Sy S e R Py gupaes #evamcmecaaanann [T saaany aen
1 11 }Tocal risk pize on DFI, subject to adjustitents |

j(sum of linea 4, 5, 9 less lines 7, 8, 10) H

|

[ [ SR — wramane romnm—nn wmam——- [POR. P — wrmmacpersmanen. [p— [ wammm—

vmmmccgeasmancan T wmmmmmmeaan . +
1 12 iwoul claims on lending upenticns by meang af H 1
jwecurities (without netting) i i
Hemm——— freomcaveennns A e A S e i it el S Sl A b L St LAl L LA Sl L L d bl g SN e st m———— Rk 3
| 13 {Netting adjustment to the monstary part(of claims| i 0.0
1 jand liabllities)of lending operations by means i i |
{of wecuritics i { {
S U R ~eeemane cmemmeceaan $eceanaaccen P “mmmean amedrmmmnae—n . .t
{ 14 |credit riak Bize per counterpa:ty on lending | i 0.0]
i ]aperutions by means of nacutittes i i
*
i 15 llusk asize on guaranhee lending operations by f { 0.0}
[means of ncu::ibiu { H
i O Ly wommmman cemmnaa Y
{ 16 [Total eluma on lending operations by means of | t 0.0}
|securitiea, subject to adjustments {sum of linea | |
{ 112 14,15 lesa idne 13} ] ] H

fmmmmm g —n S FY e mmmeemmeeeMmmehesseeehdemmmmsAAssammehAemsmmedlammavofhaaaenamaman——

! ]

i Risk on credit-related countingencien |

! }

boermmapecmsunan—an Shmmactevmsscoussccann wemeaan O A cumamann wesanan [ 4
] 17 |matal nominal value of risk on c:ees: related i | 10443433,0]
l {contingencies | {
| |
Memsnacfeccasesccammemceamaceecacacssacases [ neaeann pmemnmm - PR PR [, R
! 18 }Adjustment related to uppucauan of credit i | 2191723 .0
{equivalent coeffiaient i
BeeismcfecmnmnaessassuasscsmusAsecemsdrmecam-keamecanannan femasmmmachamaaman wesmmman kg
| 19 [Total risk gize on aredit-related concinganntea i i 5.’!51710 01
i subject to adjustments {

i {iine 17 lesg line 18) ] I




S PSS upS A I REp P
| |
i Capital at Tisk %
i

e R T T T S T T

| 20 |Coxe eapital j7.2 1 12672062.01
feemamafesmassmeceuesermscavessceennnannssredeanaacen eanbamenaratanrraesAenmaradasrnnaafmneeanannnhant
{ 21 |iTotal pize of balance sheet asssts and off-balance?.2 §8566117,0]

jahest claims at risk for calculation of Eina.nc:lall {
{ }leveraga (the sum of lines 3, 11, 16, 1%) | |
i

e e e4mamemaccAmAemmesiceeceeseewAsemascmdAmneceoAasSaafecemAdaccmeceuessbamcahAssnRcade aaacenancanaad
] i
i Financial leverage indicator

{

U PPy
22 |wi al 1 indicator ad per Rasel IIT 7.2 | 22,8
(line 20/ line 21)  in % [

T T T T T T D O Lt DEEEER T PP T rY

Section 3, Informationm en calpulation of the ratic of ghort-term liquidity

tioe | Rexzative | Sutersncs | s af g1.00,3017 1 e 2 52,00.303 as of 91.10,2037 an ot 01,01.3088
husber Tuaber H
| a0t Vaigntad oite ot | weghtad ttia of aighted slaa at weighred
s ot P saze of i #las ot oketes #i10 of
mumu.-l, Slaiae ageeiastien, Ssins fHabLtstien), aain Qisbisitiont, slaine
i o0 L nLitlen | e olie (labiasthan, | the pmres | ansaitten, | the vwder | Qleviditdas),
[ ] the rbies e rulen the rales o rsles
19 1 i 3 1 1 | 3 ] 3 i T R 1 H o 12 |
RIOR-QUMITE LIGVID APSETE
i assats (MIX inoluding eddtcionst § i Ed i i x i ! x 1 1 x 1
sh. traluded Inte auaszator 5 5 l 5 E
RIPEGTID CANY SUTFLOND
Intn arsh of thdivlduty, Lnoduding) ; E !‘ E
3 stable sash fande 1 1 1 | |
e
5 junsteble sash funds | | t |
3 [Toisl sarh of austamsre atemoted Mrnavk | I E
=nlluteess, tnadudinge ]
€ joperating deporlts 1 !
l T [dumese, othr then oparating | i |
tothye dvporite)
| U fumsscured gedt 1tadilities % 3 4
l ¥ feusn ot ousteance avirastes wen ottt | { ! ¥ i
1w wxpested tash ousliows, Lot ‘
{1nsivding:
1t for derivetive £1mancial Lnstrumants avd due te l
potential nesd for edfitioral colleters i
12 |cvancated WAtk Yoss of Zunding Loz sasired I
asst {netranents
13 joo bank Jilties uANT RoR-uel)
FLzzeroeeble and quarl cevearble 11
Jend iquidity lines 3
14 {Mditienslly expected oreh ouLfiows oo oRher 1 i
sontrastual Ysbilictes ! !
"
15 padeionily cowed sasn oitiem on other |
wootsppanci o 1
3% [rotal saeh o i € x l
rlhl03~)ln-§ouut'umu~tluv IO l
+ 1ine 3 { | I
|
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Bank ICBC (joint stock company)
(Bank ICBC {JSC))

EXPLANATORY NOTES
to the annual financial statements
for 2017

These Explanatory Notes shall form an integral part of the annual financial statements of Bank ICBC (joint-
stock company) (hereinafter referred to as the “Bank”) for 2017, prepared in accordance with the effective
legislation of the Russian Federation.

The Explanatory Notes include information about events and operations relevant for understanding
changes in the Bank's financial position and its financial results that happened in 2017.

The Explanatory Notes to the annual financial statements of the Bank present all numerical data expressed
in Russian rubles and rounded with an accuracy to whole thousands of rubles.

1. Material Information on the Credit Institution.

1.1, Information on the Credit Institution

The full firm name of the Bank is: Bank ICBC (joint-stock company);

Short name: Bank ICBC (JSC) (hereinafter referred to as “the Bank”).

The Bank is registered at: 29 Serebryanicheskaya naberezhnaya, Moscow, 109028, Russian Federation.
Actual address of the Bank: 29 Serebryanicheskaya naberezhnaya, Moscow, 109028, Russian Federation.
The Bank was entered into the Unified State Register of Legal Entities on August 30, 2007.

The Bank is a 100% subsidiary bank of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited Joint-Stock
Company (ICBC Ltd.}, with the principal ultimate beneficiary being the People's Republic of China as represented
by the Chinese Ministry of Finance.

The Bank is:

® A participant of the Section of the Electronic trading system (SELT) at the Moscow Exchange MICEX-
RTS foreign exchange market;
° Exercising the functions of a market maker for the currency pair Yuan / Russian ruble;
e A Participant of the Association of Russian Banks;
® A Participant of the following Settlements systems: S.W.LF.T.; ICBKRUMM
REUTERS-DEALING: DICB
® A member of self-regulated organization “National financial association” (SRO NFA).

Bank ICBC (ISC) is also an operator of the payment system {registration number No.0040).

As of January 01, 2018, Expert RA Russian Rating Agency assigned to the Bank a credit rating of ruAA, The
rating outlook is Stable.

1.2. Separate subdivisions and internal structural subdivisions of the Bank

The Bank has one branch in St. Petersburg, a branch of Bank ICBC {joint stock compan t-Petersburg..
The branch is registered at: 12-14, litera A, Khersonskaya Str., St. Petersbur, gsial ‘ggeration.

The Bank also has one internal structural subdivision:




+ Supplementary office “GREENWOOD": 143441, Moscow region, Krasnogorsky district, settlement
Putilkovo, 69th km of MKAD, office and public complex CISC “Greenwood”, building 17.

1.3. Data on state registration of the Bank. Licenses
Primary State Registration Number (assigned by the Federal Tax Service of Russia): 1077711000157.

The Bank has a banking license No. 3475 issued by the Central Bank of Russia on September 01, 2015. The
Bank carries out its business in accordance with Federal Law No. 395-1 “On Banks and Banking Activity” dated
December 02, 1990,

In accordance with Federal Law No. 395-1, the Bank was not a part of any banking (consolidated) group or
any banking holding.

In addition to the banking license the Bank holds the following licenses:

issuing body License type Dishursement Number Valid till
date
The Central Bank of License of a professional 18.08.2016 No. 045-13990- No set validity period
the Russian market participant of the 100000
Federation securities market for
brokerage operations
The Central Bank of License of a professional 18.08.2016 No. 045-13992- No set validity period
the Russian market participant of the 000100
Federation securities market for carrying
out depositary operations
The Central Bank of License of a professional 18.08.2016 No, 045-13991- No set validity period
the Russian market participant of the 010000
Federation securities market for dealing
operations

The Bank is a participant of the deposit insurance system and is registered under number 1009,

During the period after the reporting date and before the date when the annual financial statements were
approved for issue, the Bank obtained a universal license that grants, among other things, the right to carry out
precious metal operations.

1.4. Reporting period and the units of measurement of annual financial statements
The reporting period is from January 01, 2017 to December 31, 2017.
The annual financial statements were prepared in the currency of the Russian Federation.

In the annual financial statements all the assets and liabilities in foreign currency are presented in rubles at
the official exchange rate of the corresponding foreign currency against rubles, as established by the Bank of Russia
as of the reporting date.

The exchange rates set by the Bank of Russia as of December 31, 2012 and applied to convert currency
balances into the ruble equivalent are:

- US dollar (USD) — 57.6002;

- Euro (EUR) — 68.8668;

- 10 Chinese yuans (CNY) — 88.4497;

- Singapore dollar (SGD) — 43.0881;

= - 10 Hong Kong dollars (HKD) — 73.7056.

Unless specified otherwise, the annual financial statements are prepared ﬁng thousand

s§ian rubles
(hereinafter referred to as “ths rubles”). ] A ;
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2. Short description of business of Bank ICBC (J5C).

2.1. Nature of operations and main areas of activity

According to Federal Law of the Russian Federation No. 395-1 “On Banks and Banking Activities” dated
December 02, 1990, as subsequently amended and supplemented, as well as pursuant to the universal banking
license issued by the Central Bank of Russia, the Articles of Association of the Bank, resolutions of the Management
Board of the Bank and other regulatory acts applicable in the Russian Federation, the Bank performs the following
operations:

- Opening bank accounts for the benefit of legal entities in Russian rubles or foreigh currency, as well as
rendering comprehensive services related thereto;

- Providing cash services to legal entities (including cash collection);

- Taking demand and term deposits opened by legal entities, subject to guaranteed cash withdrawal and
income returns for customers;

- Servicing customers through the on-line Internet banking system “Bank-Client”;

- Executing wire transfers by order of individuals with no bank account opening;

- Issuing icans to legal entities, including participation in syndicated lending, subject to maturity, repayment
and interest payment;

- Investing in securities (bonds and debentures) issued by residents;

- Performing trade finance operations;

- Opening correspondent vostro accounts;

- Correspondent accounts maintenance at the instruction of correspondent banks;

- Interbank lending operations;

- Purchase and sale of foreign currency in cash or non-cash form;

- Acting as a foreign exchange control agent (statutory);

- Issuing banker’s guarantees and opening letters of credit;

- Carrying out professional services on securities market;

- Opening and servicing accounts of individuals;

- Taking demand and term deposits from individuals;

- Placing demand and term deposits of individuals on behalf of the Bank and at its expense;

- To attract to deposits and allocate precious metals;

- Executing wire transfers by orders of individuals from their bank accounts.

The Bank’s priority areas of activity are provision of banking services to corporate customers in various
industries, boosting Russia-China trade relations, as well as development of modern banking products and
technologies.

2.2, Key performance indicators and factors that had an impact on the financial results of the Bank in the
reporting year.

The key performance indicators of the Bank are presented in the table below:

As of As of As of As of As of

01.01,2018 01.10.2017 01.07.2017 01.04.2017 01.01.2017
Book value of assets 48,517,666 51,384,522 51,112,041 44,832,138 50,116,725
Loan portfolio 36,850,556 30,752,815 31,816,453 38,088,957 37,887,574
Securities portfolio 5,096,543 4,731,124 3,089,513 1,836,553 1,719,039
Funds due to credit institutions 12,765,020 14,522,363 13,718,559 10,475,679 19,536,245
Funds due to customers 21,410,123 22,945,052 22,183,505 19,579,088 24,486,278
Including deposits {funds} of indi-
viduals and sole proprietors 14,490 i

i

Income of the Bank

45,491,275

36,200,423

24,045,821




As of As of As of As of As of
01.01.2018 01,10.2017 01.07.2017 01.04.2017 01.01.2017
Expense of the Bank 44,384,124 35,423,452 23,532,862 10,638,267 97,953,189
Net profit 1,107,151 776,971 512,959 189,604 1,318,920

Despite the challenging economic environment, sanctions imposed on Russia and, accordingly, on a number
of the largest companies and financial institutions, and the complicated situation in the banking sector during 2017,
the Bank closed 2017 with a positive financial result,

The reporting year results show that the Bank maintained its industry ranking positions, remaining among
the TOP-100 largest hanks of Russia.

According to the results of 2017, the Bank posted a net profit in the amount of 1,107,151 ths rubles. This
index is 16,06% lower than that for 2016 (1,318,920 ths rubles).

The Bank’s financial results for 2017 were mostly impacted by such activities as interbank lending, trade
finance, market-making operations at the stock exchange, forward transactions, lending to large corporate
customers of the Bank as well as transactions in securities.

The structure of income and expenses characterizing the Bank’s activity for 2017 and 2016 is presented

below:
Narrative As of January | As of January 01,
01, 2018 2017
Net interest income {negative interest margin) 1,748,714 2,200,652
Change of provision for possible losses against loans and equivalents, funds
on nostro accounts and accrued interest income — total, including: {57,093) {97,250}
Net interest income (negative interest margin) after establishment of the
potential loss reserve 1,691,621 2,103,402
Net income (expense) from financial assets assessed at their fair value
through profit or loss {526,973) 23,191
Net income from operations with securities held to maturity 1,074 2,172
Net income from foreign exchange operations {131,349) 142,562
Net income from foreign currency revaluation 1,051,295 11,470
Fees and commissions income 62,429 71,138
Fees and commissions expenses 13,886 6,665
Changes in the provisions for possible losses on securities and other losses (28,335) (7,434)
Other operating income 21,214 21,899
Operating expenses 721,350 673,188
Profit {loss) before tax 1,405,744 1,688,547
Income tax refund {expense) 258,593 369,627
Profit (loss) after tax 1,107,151 1,318,920

2.3. Information on the economic environment where the Bank carries out its business.

The Bank carries out its business on the territory of the Russian Federation and therefore is impacted by

the economic environment in the country.

tations in addition to temporary factors. Among other things, this was influenced by

moderately stringent monetary policy.

By results of 2017 inflation in Russia was 2.5%. A low level of mﬂatlonary
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Stable recovery of domestic consumer demand remained the key driver of the economic growth, but it was
quite smooth and did not prevent the slowdown in price growth. The key factor supporting the consumption re-
mained income. As it grew, there was also a gradual improvement in the quality of loan portfolios, in consequence
of which banks mitigated cautiously their non-price lending terms.

The continued recovery of economic activity contributed to improving the financial position of borrowers,
increasing the banks confidence in their customers and gradua! cautious mitigation of non-price terms of bank
lending. At the same time, in general, banks continued to pursue a quite conservative policy, preferring the least
risky areas for placing funds.

The growth rate of the population's investment in bank deposits was generally in line with the income
behaviour in the economy. As in the previous months, short-term ruble deposits grew most rapidly in September
to October. This was determined by the convergence of interest rates for short-term and long-term deposits in light
of expecting further lowering of the Bank of Russia's key rate in the medium term.

The dollarization of deposits continued to decrease. The remaining relatively high trend to invest in ruble
deposits was supported by an attractive level of interest rates in real terms and the persistent confidence in the
domestic financial system.

Based on the analysis of current dynamics and the forecast of inflation and economic activity for the me-
dium term and taking into account the risk of infiation being miore or less than 4%, on December 15, 2017, The
Board of Directors of the Bank of Russia decided to decrease the key rate from 8.25% to 7.75% per annum,

Together with the decrease in market interest rates that was based on the actual and expected change in
the Bank of Russia’s key rate, this resulted in a certain increase in the availability of loans in the economy. According
to the Bank of Russia, those trends in the loan raising will remain in the forecast future, that will contribute to
expanding the range of sources of investment funding for companies and of consumption for the population.

The Bank of Russia admits that a certain decrease in the key rate is possible in the first half of 2018, Taking
decisions on the key rate, the Bank of Russia will assess the balance of risks of a material and stable deviation of
the inflation up and down from the target and the dynamics of economic activity as compared with the forecast.

In September to December 2017, the foreign economic situation developed in general within the previous
trends and did not prevent the continuous recovery of the Russian economy in meeting the inflation targets and
maintaining the stable financial system. The effect of external factors was largely in line with the previous forecast,
except for the behaviour of world oil prices, current and expected levels of which increased.

The growth of the global economy continued to accelerate gradually.

The recovery of global demand was quite smooth, which determined moderate inflationary background
remaining in most developed countries and emerging markets. With this in view, a relatively soft monetary policy
prevailed in the world's largest economies, which was in line with the forecast. Along with any other factors, it
supported moderate optimism in the global financial markets.

The ruble weakening in October and November may restrain the growth of import that accelerated in 2017
whereby supporting the export surplus and reducing the negative contribution of net export to the annual rate of
GDP growth in real terms. Moreover, it will also contribute to the dynamics of inflation through import prices: the
disinflationary impact of the exchange rate dynamics on a year-on-year basis that existed for the most part of 2017
is expected to cease in 2018.

At the same time, changes in external prices (subject to the inflationary background in the countries being
trading partners of Russia and the dynamics of world commodity prices) did not and are not expected to put any
additional pressure on the inflation in Russia in the coming months.

2017 was rather complicated for the Russian banking sector in institutional terms {a large number of §i-
censes was revoked and there was resolution of a number of banks), although the dynamics of many indicators was
quite good.

According to the Bank of Russia, from the beginning of the year (January to November} the volume of assets
increased nominally by 4.9% or by 3.9 trillion rubles to 84 trillion rubles as of December 1, 2017 (in real terms, the
growth by 5.9%). For comparison, in the same period of 2016, the asset reduction amounted to 3.2% in nominal
terms, and the rate of asset reduction without foreign currency revaluation was 0.3%:
taneous growth of assets in nominal and real terms continued by results of Novembe
ln 2017 the lending to the economy was worse than the dynamics of assets.




by 3% (3.9% in real terms). As compared with the beginning of 2017, the share of overdue debt virtually did not
change, having decreased from 6.72% at the beginning of the year to 6.68% as of December 1, 2017,

The unstable dynamics of overdue debt is due to the volatility of corporate lending, while the share of
overdue debt decreased almost continuously for retail loans {from 8.1% in January to 7.3% as of November 1, 2017).

From the beginning of the year, the total profit of Russian banks amounted to 870 billion rubles {(an average
of 79 billion per month} against 788 billion rubles for the same period a year earlier,

In 2017, the Bank of Russia reduced the key rate six times, but this process is not over yet, and in case the
inflation is favourable in 2018, a similar reduction may be expected. In general, the policy of the monetary author-
ities appeared to be softer than expected in late 2016 and early 2017. However, the record low inflation rate {2.5%
by results of 2017} allowed to decrease the rates faster,

The issue that ceased to be of prime importance, becomes urgent again. US sanctions became much
tougher in 2017, and they will probably be even more tough in 2018. Possible sanctions on the Russian state
debt is often discussed, that may be very painful for the financial sector of the country. The scope of sanctions and
the further development of this subject will be clearer in the first half of 2018. in general, sanctions may become
one of potential “black swans” for the Russian banks and the financial sector.

Despite the sanctions imposed on Russia, it is the world's leading economic power, the largest state adja-
cent to China and the most important component of the One Belt, One Way Project. Russia and China have great
economic complementarity, the market for investment in construction and other infrastructure projects and new
projects in many industries, that is a real large market with great development potential for Bank ICBC (JSC).

China and Russia continue to deepen the relations of comprehensive strategic partnership, to strengthen
cooperation and coordination of economic and financial policy, to jointly promote settlements in local currencies
and internationalization of yuan in order to create more favourable conditions for the development of Chinese
banks operating in Russia.

Despite negative market trends as well as intensifying anti-Russian sanctions from the USA and Europe,
management of the Bank will continue business expansion in Russia due to continuing development of interstate
relations and economic cooperation between Russia and China.

Management of the Bank believes that it takes all necessary and appropriate measures to maintain eco-
nomic soundness of the Bank under current circumstances and also is confident that the Bank has potential for
further development. The key competencies of the Bank and its credit policy applied enable to build long-term
business relations with key clients and ensure the Bank’s operation as a going concern,

In 2018, the Bank is going to follow the approved strategy and credit policy and grant loans to large-scale
Russian companies and Russian subdivisions of Chinese companies operating in different economic sectors.

2.4. Information on the development prospects of the institutional lender.

In the nearest time Bank ICBC (JSC) will adhere to the developed and approved Strategy of Development of
Bank ICBC (JSC} for 2018~2020.

The primary strategic goal of Bank ICBC (JSC) is to strengthen the positions of a reliable and rapidly devel-
oping bank in the Russian Federation. This goal implies an optimal allocation of proportions between the core areas,
i.e. corporate customer services and cooperation with financial institutions, and carrying out transactions in the
foreign exchange market,

Bank ICBC {JSC) is elaborating measures required to achieve the goal in the short, medium and long-term
planning. The Bank has a license of the Bank of Russia to raise funds of individuals to deposits in rubles and foreign
currency, obtained the status of a clearing house for transactions in yuan in the Russian Federation, has licenses of
a professional securities market participant for broker, dealer and custodian activities and launched all those ser-
vices.

in order to develop further and to strengthen its market positions, the Bank de {

following tasks should be completed:
1, Expansion and diversification of its corporate customer base;
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2. Expansion of the range of services provided to corporate customers (development of new and improve-
ment of existing products while flexibly fitting into market requests), including certain products for employees of
corporate customers;

3. Maintenance of risk management and internal control in order to control significant risks and keep them
at an acceptable level;

4, Provision of a level of technological eguipment that meets international requirements and standards;

5. improving the Bank's ability to manage in order to ensure a quick response to changing market condi-
tions.

A key factor in the success of Bank ICBC (ISC) in achieving its goals is the quality of the services provided.

2.5. Information on the management bodies of the institutional lender

The supreme managing body of the Bank is a sole Shareholder of the Bank owning 100% of its share capital -
JSC “Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited".
General management of the Bank is undertaken by the Board of Directors of Bank ICBC (JSC).

The Chairman of the Board of Directors is Cui Liang.
iviembers of the Board of Directors are:

o \Wu Minmin,
» Tao Mei,

e Wang Ying,
e Li Wencong.

During 2017, there were changes in the Board of Directors as follows:
- Hong Guilu was relieved of duties as a member of the Board of Directors;

Li Wencong holds the position of the President and the Chairman of the Management Board of the Bank.
Members of the Management Board:

e Lang Weijie — Vice President,
o |gor Glebovich Titlin — Vice President,
¢ Natalia Viktorovna Kuzmina — Chief Accountant.
In 2017, no modifications occurred in the Management Board:
None of the members of the Bank’s Board of Directors or the Management Board holds shares in Bank ICBC
{(Isc).

3. Short review of the basis of preparation of the annual financial statements and accounting principles
of the institutional lender.

Pursuant to Regulation of the Central Bank of Russia No. 3054-Y dated September 04, 2013 “On preparation
of annual financial statements by credit institutions” (hereinafter referred to as No. 3054-Y), the Bank completed
all required preliminary work to facilitate preparation of the annual accounts for 2017 presenting actual assets,
liabilities and claims of a credit institution, As of December 01, 2017, the Bank performed stock take of its property,
claims and liabilities. As of the end of the banking day, on December 29, 2017, the Bank performed cash check and
count. No cash excess or shortage was found.

As of January 01, 2018, the Bank obtained written balance confirmations from its correspondent credit
institutions and non-resident banks. The procedure to obtain account balance confirmations from legal entities will
be continued until finalized.

3.1. Principles and methods of evaluation and accounting of significant ope ‘a_tions.‘and.events:.__.....:......-.

!
%

In its activity the Bank is guided by legislation of the Russian Federation, reguxa’nons of the R
ment, instructions and recommendations of the Central Bank of Russia, the Russ;anﬁTax Sergtic ;




Accounting Policy of the Bank for 2017 (approved by the Bank’s Order No. 237 dated December 30, 2016 and Order
No. 121 dated lune 30, 2017 (as amended)).

The Accounting Policy of the Bank for 2017 is based on the following main principles and quality features:

- Going concern,

- Income and expense accrual method,

- Consistency of accounting,

- Prudency,

- Timeliness of transaction records,

- Separate recording of assets and liabilities,

- Consistency of opening balance,

- Substance over form concept,

- Rationality,

- Openness,

- Preparation of a summary balance sheet,

- Valuation of assets and liabilities.

In 2017, the Bank kept its accounting records in accordance with Regulations of the Central Bank of Russia
No. 579-11 dated February 27, 2017 “On Plan of Accounts for Credit Institutions and Procedure for its Application”
{hereinafter referred to as “Regulations No. 579-1") as well as with other regulatory acts of the Central Bank of
Russia, which determine procedures of recording particular transactions,

According to the requirements of the Central Bank of Russia and the Accounting Policy, certain transactions
of the Bank shall be recorded on the balance sheet as follows:

Monetary claims (liabilities} in the currency of the Russian Federation shall be accounted for in rubles, in
the amount of the claims (liabilities} which actually aroused.

Assets and liabilities expressed in a foreign currency shall be recorded on the Bank’s balance sheet in rubles
at the current exchange rate of the corresponding foreign currency, as established by the Central Bank of Russia.
Such assets and liabilities shall be revalued each time when the Central Bank of Russia changes the foreign currency
exchange rate to ruble,

The accounts receivable arising in foreign currency shall be accounted for in ruble equivalent to the ac-
counts receivable in this foreign currency, at the exchange rate of the Central Bank of Russia as of the day of re-
cording such accounts receivable.

Pursuant to Regulation No. 446-1 dated December 22, 2014 On Procedures of determination of income,
expense and other comprehensive income by credit institutions (hereinafter referred to as “Regulation No. 446-
"), transactions related to accrual and payment {receipt) of interest on the deposited {placed)} funds in form of
credits or deposits shall be recorded according to the “accrual” method.

As 1o the placed funds included into the |-l quality categories, income generation shall be deemed as def-
inite.

As to the placed funds included into the IV-V quality categories, income generation shall be deemed as
indefinite, and interest shall be accrued on off-balance sheet accounts.

As to deposited funds, payment of expenses in form of interest shall be deemed as definite,

Securities shall be classified and recorded on the balance sheet accounts of the first level according to the
following categories;

o Securities assessed at their fair value through profit and loss.,

From the moment of initial recognition and till the moment of derecognition, investments into securities
shall be evaluated {revalued) at the current (fair}) value, without establishment in their respect of any provisions for
possible losses.

The current (fair) value of a security shall be deemed to be the price that would be obtained upon selling
of the security when the transaction is conducted between participants of the securities market on a voluntary
basis as of the valuation date. The current (fair) value shall be established in accordance with the procedure deter«-

mined by the International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 13 "Fair Value Measurement” and in accordance
with the methodology for fair value measurement for securities stipulated by the Ac
o Held to maturity
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acquisition date and the maturity date) shall be recognized in the amount of the actual costs associated with the
acquisition. Whenever required, a provision for possible losses shall be established.

. Secyrities available for sale.

If the current fair value of securities may not be reliably determinable, the securities shall be recognized at
the price of their acquisition and subsequently shall not be revalued; if there are any indications of their impair-
ment, provisions for possible losses shall be established in their respect.

The FIFO method shall be used for evaluation of the cost of disposed {sold) securities.

Accounting of derivative financial instruments is carried out by the Bank according to Regulation of the
Bank of Russia “On accounting for derivative financial instruments” No. 372-1 dated July 04, 2011.

Measurement of fair value of derivative financia! instruments is carried out by the Bank as follows.

After initial recognition the Bank accounts for a derivative financial instrument at fair value and reflects in
the accounting records the change in fair value of the derivative financial instrument,

Measurement of fair value of derivative financial instruments and its disclosure in the accounting records
is carried out on the last working day of a month on the date of derecognition of derivative financial instruments
and also on the date of occurrence of claims and (or) liabilities to make interim payments according to the contrac-
tual terms.

Measurement of fair value of derivative financial instruments and accounting for its changes are carried
out in the currency of the Russian Federation.

Accounting of the Bank’s economic transactions conducted for the purposes of supporting the Bank’s ac-
tivities shall be maintained subject to the following:

Expenses which are incurred in the given reporting period but referred to future reporting periods shall be
recognized as expenses in the corresponding amounts upon occurrence of the reporting period to which they refer,

items with the useful life exceeding 12 months and with the value above 118,000 rubles inclusive VAT shall
be recorded as fixed assets.

Fixed assets shall be posted to the relevant accounts at the book value, which is determined for items ac-
quired for a valuable consideration or built by a contractor or independently, as a sum of actual expenditures in-
curred by the Bank when acquiring, developing (building) or creation {producing) an asset, including VAT.

For all groups of homogenous Fixed assets, except for Group 10 (property with useful life over 30 years)
“Buildings”, to account for inseparable improvements to rented property the Bank applies accounting at the original
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated revaluation losses. Fixed assets revaluation fosses shall be
recognized at the moment of their identification.

Fixed assets Group 10 {property with useful life over 30 years) “Buildings”, except for inseparable improve-
ments to rented property, the Bank applies accounting at revalued book value.

The cost of a fixed asset is gradually written off during its useful life by means of depreciation,

Depreciation is a regular cost reduction of a fixed asset during its useful life. The total amount of depreciation
is determined as the original or revalued cost of the asset less its calculated liquidation value.

The calculated liquidation value of a fixed asset is the amount that the Bank would receive at the end of the
useful life period upon the asset disposal net of the cost of disposal.

Depreciation of fixed assets of all groups shall accrue by a straight-line method. In case of the
straight-line method, the annual amount of depreciation shall be determined based on the original or revalued
amount {in case of revaluation) of a fixed asset and the depreciation rate. To calculate the depreciation rates, the
useful life of fixed assets shall be used.

intangible asset is an asset that simultaneously meets the following conditions:

- Is able to bring future economic benefits to a credit institution, namely, the asset shall be used for provi-
sion of works and services, or for management needs;

- The Bank has rights to receive the economic benefits from the asset use in the future;

- There are restrictions to access the economic benefits from the asset by third parties.(the credit institution

has contro! over the asset); ]
- The asset is identifiable, that is it can be separated from other assets; '5
- The intended use of the asset exceeds 12 months;
- Sale of the asset within 12 months is not foreseen by the Bank;

a
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- The asset has no tangible form;

- The original cost of the asset is reliably determinable.

An intangible asset is recognized in the accounts at its original cost determined as of the date of the asset
recognition.

For further valuation of an intangible asset, of any group of homogeneous intangible assets, the Bank ap-
plies accounting at original cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated revaluation losses. Revaluation
losses of intangible assets shall be recognized at the time of their identification.

Amortization of intangible assets of all groups shall accrue by a straight-line method. In case of the straight-
line method, the annual amount of depreciation shall be determined based on the original value of intangible assets
and the depreciation rate. To calculate the depreciation rates, the useful life of intangible assets shall be applied.

Accounting of the Bank's inventories shall be carried out in the manner prescribed by Regulation of the
Bank of Russia No. 448-MN dated December 22, 2014 On Accounting by Credit institutions of Fixed Assets, Intangible
Assets, Real Estate Temporarily not Used in Core Business, Long-Term Assets Held for Sale, Inventories, Work Equip-
ment, Materials and Supplies Received under Settiement and Release or Pledge Agreements, which Purpose is not
Determined.

Inventories shall be recognized when economic risks and benefits arising out of the use of inventories for
the purpose of deriving income pass to the Bank. In most cases, those risks and benefits pass at the same time
when the Bank obtains the ownership to the inventories or they are actually received. '

The inventories shall be valued at their recognition in the amount of actual costs for their acquisition, de-
livery and bringing them into a condition suitable for use (hereirafter at cost).

The value of inventories shall be recognized in expenses when they are transferred by a designated person
of the Bank for the performance of works, the provision of services or on the basis of a report on their use duly
executed by the designated person.

Provisions under the Bank’s assets and operations, such as provision for possible loan losses, for loans and
loan equivalents, provision for other possible losses, shall be formed in accordance with the requirements of the
regulatory documents of the Central Bank of Russia, as well as internal documents of the Bank.

The Bank shall determine the financial result (profit or loss) annually.

Guarantees and sureties received by the Bank as a security of granted credits, invested assets and credit-
related contingencies shall be recorded on off-balance sheet accounts for collaterals in the amount of the assumed
collateral value, i.e. in the amount securing fulfilment of actual liabilities of a borrower.

3.2. The nature and amount of adjustments due to changes of the accounting policy and accounting esti-
mates influencing comparability of certain performance indicators of the institutional lender

The Bank shall maintain its accounting records in compliance with the accounting consistency concept. The
Bank’s Accounting Policy shall be amended in case of introduction of new types of operations (transactions),
changes in legislation of the Russian Federation or regulatory documents of the Central Bank of Russia, which have
an impact on the Bank’s activities.

In connection with entry into force in 2017 of Regulation of the Bank of Russia No. 579- dated February
27,2017 On Chart of Accounts for Credit Institutions and Procedure for its Application and cancelation of Regulation
of the Bank of Russia No, 385-I1 dated July 16, 2012 On Rules for Accounting by Credit Institutions Located in the
Russian Federation, amendments were made to the Bank's Accounting Policy for 2017, i.e. to the operating chart
of accounts. The new Regulation cancelled Chapter D “Custody Accounts”, in connection with which the respective
amendments were made.

The amendments did not affect the comparability of data of the Bank's annual financial statements for
2017.
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3.3. Information on the nature of assumptions and the key sources of uncertainty in estimations as of the
end of the reporting period

For the Accounting Policy application, the Bank used its professional judgment in respect of determination
of the amounts recognized in the annual financial statements. Below are examples of such professional judgment
application by the Bank:

Provisions for possible losses

The Bank shall regularly analyse the assets (instruments) in order to reveal the risk of possible losses.

Provisions for possible losses on loans and their equivalents shall be established on the basis of the Bank’s
assumptions pursuant to Regulation of the Central Bank of Russia dated June 28, 2017 No, 590-11 “On the Procedure
of Establishment by Institutional Lenders of Provisions for Possible Losses on Loans and Loan Equivalents” (herein-
after referred to as “Regulation No. 590-11"}. Provisions for possible losses on other assets (instruments) shall be
established on the basis of the Bank’s professional judgments pursuant to Regulation of the Central Bank of Russia
dated March 20, 2006 No. 283-1 “On the Procedure of Establishment by Institutional Lenders of Provisions for
Possible Losses” (hereinafter referred to as “Regulation No. 283-N"}.

Taxation

When determining the amount of deferred tax assets, which may be recognized in the financial statements,
the Bank’s management shall assess the possibility of use of the available deferred tax asset in the full amount. Use
of the deferred tax asset depends on generation of taxable profit in the periods when the temporary differences
may be used against it. When conducting this assessment, the management shall consider the expected write-off
of the deferred tax liabilities, the future projected taxable profits and tax planning strategies. The Bank shall as-
sess the possibility of generation of taxable profits sufficient for recording on the balance sheet of the deferred tax
assets amount only in case it is significant {10% from the amount of the income tax, calculated for the same report-
ing period).

3.4. Data on the adjusting events after the reporting date

A post-reporting event (PRE) shall be deemed to be the fact of the Bank's activity carried out during the
period between the reporting date and the date of signing of the annual accounting report, which may significantly
affect the Bank’s financial position as of the reporting date.

The post-reporting events confirming the conditions, which existed as of the reporting date and during
which the Bank carried out its activity, are reflected in the financial statements.

1. In accordance with clause 3.2.2. of the Order of the Central Bank of Russia No. 3054-Y, on the first busi-
ness day of the new year after preparation of a daily balance-sheet as of January 01, the balances reported on the
account No. 706 "Financial Result of the Current Year" were carried forward to the account No. 707 "Financial Result
of the Previous Year".

2. In accordance with clause 3.1.2. of the Order of the Bank of Russia No. 3054-Y, the adjusting events after
the reporting date were the following:

- Recovery of the provision for possible losses regarding other claims concerning internal operations of the
Bank;

- Posting accrued amounts of taxes and fees to expenditure accounts;

- Income tax accrual for 2017,

- Clarification of amounts of expenses after the receipt of primary documents after the reporting date that
confirm the operations carried out prior to the reporting date.

As a result of events after the reporting date the Bank’s financial results amounted to 1,107,151 ths rubles.

3.5, Dato on the adfusting events after the reporting date not recognized in the statements

From the reporting date to March 16, 2018, i.e. during the period of preparation of the annual financial statements,
but prior to the issue date of the audit report, the Bank additionally formed provision for loans, accrued.interest.and.credit
related contingencies for a number of borrowers in the total amount of 543,578 ths rubles th fcltided in the annuat-
accounting {financial] reporting.




In the event that such provision was formed as of the reporting date, this would have the following effect
on the balance sheet items (a public disclosure form) for 2017:

e [tem 5 “Net Loan Indebtedness” (36,850,956 ths rubles) is reduced by the provision for loans in the amount
of 553,095 ths rubles;

e |tem 12 “Other Assets” (180,353 ths rubles) is reduced by the provision for unearned interest income in the
amount of 4,978 ths rubles;

e |tem 22 “Potential loss reserves for contingent credit liabilities, other possible losses and operations with
off-shore residents” {19,568 ths rubles) is increased by the amount of the provisian for possible losses on
credit-related contingencies by 193,581 ths rubles.

On January 31 2018, the Bank paid bonuses ta its employees by results of operations for 2017 by decision
of the Board of Directors (Minutes No. 01-18 dated January 29, 18), that was adopted after the reporting date, but
during the period of preparation of the annual financial statements.

The bonus is non-fixed remuneration related to 2017, and if it were reported as of the reporting date, this
would have the following impact on the balance sheet items {a public disclosure form) for 2017:

e ltem 21 “Other Liabilities” {503,167 ths rubles.} is increased by 19,948 ths rubles.

The reporting of those events would have a negative effect on the profit for 2017 in the amount of 771,602
ths rubles.

There were no non-adjusting post-reporting events in the Bank’s activities
3.6. Information about changes in the Accounting Policy of the institutional lender for the following re-
porting year

Starting on January 01, 2018, the Bank’s Order No. 232 dated December 29, 2017 put into effect the Ac-
counting Policy of Bank ICBC (JSC} for 2018 for RAR accounting.

The Accounting Policy of the Bank for 2018 was prepared in accordance with Federal Law 402-®3 dated
December 06, 2011 “On Accounting”, Regulation No. 579- of the Central Bank of Russia (as amended on January
01, 2018} and internal regulatory documents of the Bank.

The Accounting Policy of the Bank for 2018 does not contain notable changes in comparison with the similar
document for 2017,

The Bank intends carry out its business on a going concern basis and has no need to liquidate or downsize
its activity or operate on unfavourable terms, Therefore, the Accounting Policy of the Bank is consistently applied
from one reporting period to another.

During the reporting period, no material errors were identified that relate to the previous periods affecting
the annual financial statements of the Bank,

3.7. Infarmation on the diluted earnings (loss) per share

For the Bank, information on earnings (loss) per share is not applicable, as there are no convertible securi-
ties in the Bank {according to the “Guidelines for Disclosure of Information on the Earnings per One Share”, as
approved by the Order of the Ministry of Finance of the Russian Federation dated March 21, 2000 No. 29H).

4, Accompanying information to the balance sheet.
4.1, Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are presented in the following manner:

As of January 01,
2018
ths rubles
Cash

30,27




Funds of credit institutions held with the Central Bank of the Russian Feder-
ation {except for mandatory reserves and a security deposit of an operator

of the payment system) 2,761,587 2,616,761
Total cash and balances with the Central Bank 2,791,862 2,715,885
Funds due from credit institutions 2,295,476 6,766,083
Provislons for possible losses - -
Total cash due from credit institutions 2,295,476 6,766,083
Total cash and cash equivalents 5,087,338 9,481,968

As of January 01, 2018, and January 01, 2017, balances of the required reserve accounts with the Central Bank
of Russia amounted to 348,760 ths rubles and 425,045 ths rubles, accordingly. The Bank places required reserves
on deposit with the Central Bank of the Russian Federation on a continuous basis.

The Bank is an operator of the ICBC payment system. Within that payment system, the Bank transferred the
security deposit to the Bank of Russia on a quarterly basis. The amount of the accumulated security deposit as of
January 01, 2018 is 816,998 ths rubles.

This cash has been excluded from the item “Cash and cash equivalents” as the Bank has restrictions for its
use according to Article 82.5 of Federal Law No. 86-®3 “On the Central Bank of the Russian Federation {the Bank of
Russia)” dated July 10, 2002.

4.2, Financial assets at fair value through prafit or loss

There are no debt and equity securities carried on the Bank's balance sheet and assessed at fair value through
profit or loss as well as derivative financial instruments (DFI} with the positive fair value on the Bank’s balance sheet
as of January 01, 2018.

As of lanuary 01, 2018 As of January 01, 2017

ths rubles ths rubles
Debt securities - -
Derivative financial instruments with expected flow of economic benefits
(swap with an underlying asset foreign currency) - 4,294
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss before deduc-
tion of the provision - 4,294
Provisions for possible losses - -
Total financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - 4,294

4.3, For loans, loan indebtedness and equivalent indebtedness

Loans and loan equivalents issued to customers were divided by category as follows:

As of January 01, 2018 As of January 01, 2017
ths rubles ths rubles
Deposits in the Bank of Russia 300,000 -
Loans to customers — credit institutions 19,707,240 29,107,616
Loans to customers — legal entities other than credit institutions 17,135,110 9,015,287
Loans to customers — individuals 257 65
Total loans and loan equivalents 37,142,647 38,122,968
Provision for possible loan losses (291,691) {235,394}
Total net ioans and lcan equivalents 36,850,956 37,887,574




Loans broken down by type of issued loan is presented below:

As of January 01, 2018  As of January O'Zi., 2017

ths rubles ths rubles

Deposits in the Bank of Russia 300,000 -
Loans and loan equivalents issued to customers — credit institu-

tions: 19,707,240 29,107,616
- Inter-bank loans (including syndicated} 12,945,350 16,778,112
- Trade financing operations 4,586,426 4,660,602
- Securlty deposits - 823,497
- Postfinancing 1,350,408 108,199
- Acquisition of rights to claim 817,234 4,744,924
- Other invested assets 7,822 1,992,282
Loans and loan equivalents issued to customers ~ legai entities

other than credit institutions: 17,135,110 9,015,287
- Financing of current activity 12,595,891 5,298,154
- Acquisition of rights ta claim 4,135,009 3,710,825
- Factoring 387,967 -
- Other invested assets 16,243 6,308
Loans and loan equivalents issued to customers ~ individuals 297 65
Total loans and loan equivalents 37,142,647 38,122,968
Provision for possible loan fosses (291,691) {235,394)
Total net loans and loan equivalents 36,850,956 37,887,574

As of January 01, 2018, the total funds provided to credit institutions reduced by 2.7% and amounted to
36,850,956 ths rubles (net of the loan loss provision), (as of January 01, 2017: 37,887,574 ths rubles).

Due to the volatile situation in the banking market during 2017, the Bank began to actively use the Bank of
Russia's deposits as the most reliable tool for placing money.

As of January 01, 2018, the volume of placed interbank credits amounted to- 12,945,350 ths rubles, which is
a reduction by 22.84% with the corresponding period of the previous year (16,778,112 ths rubles as of January 01,
2017). Out of this, as of January 01, 2018 the volume placed with non-resident banks amounted to 1,149,846 ths
roubles {698,259 ths rubles as of January 01, 2017). This reduction is due to the placement of raised funds in other
assets (corporate lending, factoring).

In 2017 the Bank continued its active work with trade finance instruments used for facilitation of export and
import operations of its customers (both legal entities and correspondent banks). As of January 01, 2018, the main
volume of trade finance operations (including post financing} amounted to 5,936,834 ths rubles, while as of the
corresponding reporting date of the last year, this indicator amounted to 8,174,089 ths rubles.

Decrease in the trade finance portfolio in 2017 was due to the following factors:

- Lower demand from Chinese banks caused by existence of more favourable terms to get funds elsewhere
on the internal market;

- Suspension of a number of limits for major Russian banks in connection with their financial rehabilitation;
- Higher costs to support liquidity on the Russian market; ‘

- Stricter requirements of the Bank to its potential borrowers to minimize transaction non-payment risks
(including trade finance operations);

- Lower demand for trade finance operations from Russian companies;

- Significant growth in interbank financing rates in Chinese Yuan due to toug?
by the National Bank of China.
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in 2017, the total volume of funds with correspondent banks amounted to 13,331,061 ths rubles {the
corresponding number for 2016 was 29,262,463 ths rubles).

The main area of the Bank’s activities in 2017 was offering products and services to Russian companies from
a “large-scale corporate business” segment, as well as to Russian subdivisions of Chinese companies.

As of January 01, 2018, the loan portfolio of the Bank was 17,118,867 ths rubles (as of January 01, 2017 the
balance sheet total is 9,008,979 ths rubles).

The majority of the portfolio {95.24%) accounts for the Bank’s participation in syndicated loans (both on
the primary market and through acquisition of rights to claim on the secondary market) issued to large-scale cor-
porate borrowers. Among the Bank’s borrowers are the largest Russian companies from the following economic
sectors: oll and gas, metallurgy, power production, mineral fertilizers and other.

Loans and acquired rights to claim {mainly in rubles and US dollars) have maturities in the range of 1 to 10
years.

The table below presents data on the volume and structure of loans broken-down by type of borrowers’
business.

As of January 01, 2018 As of January 01, 2017
ths rubles ths rubles
Deposits in the Bank of Russia 300,000 -
Loans to customers — credit institutions 19,707,240 29,107,616
Loans to customers — legal entities other than credit institutions 7 11,150,702 5,298,154
Manufacturing 8,187,144 3,570,520
Extraction of minerals 1,004,407 514,496
Wholesale and retail trade 425,000 -
Other types of activities (activities on management of hoiding-com-
panies) 1,534,151 1,213,138
lLoans to customers ~ legal entities (non-resident) other than credit
institutions 1,445,189 -
Other invested assets 16,243 6,308
Acquired rights to claim 4,135,009 3,710,825
Factoring 387,967 -
Loans to customers — individuals 297 65
Tota! loans and loan equivalents 37,142,647 38,122,968
Provision for possible loan losses (291,691) (235,394)
Total net loans and loan equivalents 36,850,956 37,887,574

According to the results of 2017, the loan portfolio increased by 90.1% (9,015,287 ths rubles as of January 01,
2017). The key factors that influenced the increase in the loan portfolio in 2017 were:

- Expansion of the customer base with enterprises operating in some industries new for the Bank, such as
pulp and paper industry, leasing, etc.;

- Expansion of the Bank's line of credit products, i.e. launch of factoring.

Loans to individuals represent security deposits for rented premises.

Information about remaining loan maturities {before deduction of the provision for possible loan losses} is
presented in the table below:
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As of January 01, 2018

Up te 30 From 31110 30 From 81 to From 181 Over 1 year Total
days days 180 days daysto 1
year
Loans 11,023,043 4,589,383 3,789,041 3,048,620 14,692,560 37,142,647
Provision for possible loan
{osses (291,691)
Loans after deduction of
the provision 36,850,956
As of January 01, 2017
Up to 30 days From 31 to 90 From 31 to From 181 Over 1 year Total
days 180 days daystol
year
Loans 19,412,901 2,712,484 3,847,592 4,356,005 7,793,986 38,122,968
Provision for possible loan fosses (235,394)
Loans after deduction of the
provision 37,887,574
Geographical analysis of loans
As of January 01, 2018  As of January 01, 2017
ths rubles ths rubles
Russian Federation 30,953,684 26,743,114
including:
Moscow 11,906,189 17,888,613
Moscow Region 1,080 1,080
St. Petevsburg 9,184,716 4,223,203
Kaluga Region - 280,000
Perm Territory 2,880,010 1,339,171
Novgorod Region 2,592,009 606,569
Jewish Autonomous Region 356,405 375,318
Krasnoyarsk Territory - 545,201
Sverdlovsk Region 921,603 -
Belgorod Reglon 1,080,004 800,334
Lipetsk Region . 416,171
Stavropol Territory . -
Chelyabinsk Region 137,516 267,454
Kursk Region 360,001 -
Tyumen Region 1,534,151 ;
OECD 1,568,617 3,427,820
Other countries 4,620,346 7,952,034
Total loans and loan equivalents 37,142,6 38,122,968...
Provision for possible loan losses (291,691} '(235,394)
Total net loans and ioan equivalents 36,850,95‘;;% f574
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in 2018, the Bank intends to comply with the approved credit policy and issue loans to businesses in different
industries.

4.4. Net investments in securities held to maturity
As of January 01, 2018, the Bank's security portfolio of 5,096,543 ths rubles comprises as follows:

As of January 01, 2018  As of January 01, 2017
ths rubles ths rubles

1,978 63
Bonds of the Government of the Russian Federation and municipal bonds: 4,001,97 0,638

Russtan Federation federal foan bonds {OFZs) 2,956,708 630,638
Debentures of the constituent entities of the Russian Federation and local

government authorities 1,005,270 "
Corporate bonds, including: 1,094,565 1,088,401
Bonds of credit institutions - -
Bonds of non-resident banks 1,094,565 1,088,401
Total debt securities held-to-maturity 5,096,543 1,719,039
Potential loss reserve - -
5,096,543 1,719,039

The Bank considers investments in securities as a tool allowing it to derive interest and investment income
and simultaneously flexibly regulate its current and medium-term liquidity. All securities are classified by the Bank
as “securities held-to-maturity”.

The principal market segments for the Bank to continue its operations shall be as follows:
- Corporate securities;

- Government bonds;

- Eurobonds.

As of January 01, 2018, the Bank’s debt securities portfolio comprises the following items:

Security type | Maturity Coupon size,

% p.a.

Russian Federation federal loan bonds {OFZs}):

OFZ 26204 RUQDOAQJRCI6 15.03.2018 7.5

OFZ 25081 RUOODAQITKZ1 31.01.2018 6.2

OFZ 29011 RUCOOAOIV7I9 29.01.2020 10.43

OFZ-IN 52001 RUODOAQJVMH1 16.08.2023 2.5

OFZ 24019 RUOODAQGIX0J2 16.10.2019 9.13

Municipal bonds:

SPbG035001-0b RUQDOADZYHX8 28.05.2025 7.7

Bonds of non-resident credit institutions:

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK BOND 2014 27 CND10G007YK1 20,11,2019 4.08

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK BOND 2014 19 CND100007RT6 24,07.2019 4,92

As of January 01, 2018, there were no debt liabilities with delayed payments.

As of January 01, 2017, the Bank’s debt securities portfolio comprises the ﬁ;:!;owing ite
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Security type Maturity Coupon size,

% p.a.

Russian Federation federal loan bonds {OFZs):

OFZ 26204 RUGCOAOJRCIE 15.03.2018 7.5

OFZ 25081 RUOOCAOITKZ1 31.01.2018 6.2

OFZ-IN 52001 RUCOCAOIVMH1 16.08.2023 25

Bonds of non-resident credit institutions:

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK BOND 2014 27 CND100007YK1 20.11.,2019 4.08

CHINA DEVELOPMENT BANK BOND 2014 19 CND100007RT6 24.07.2019 4.92

The portfolio comprises liquid securities traded in the open market and with current quotations.

Reliable prime-quality borrowers with sound market positions are seen as issuers of securities by the Bank.
The composition of the securities portfolio is made up with regard to a balanced estimate of reliability, liquidity,
maturity and profitability of each instrument,

The Bank will continue to perform operations with securities, including for investment purposes, with its
preference being state securities of the Russian Federation and highly liquid bonds and debentures of the largest
Russian and foreign issuers.

4.5, Current income tax claims

As of January 01, 2018 As of January 01, 2017

ths rubles ths rubles
Current income tax claims 31,341 35,678
Total current income tax claims 31,341 39,678

The current income tax claims occurred as a result of income tax overpayment identified in course of calcu-
lation of the income tax base for 2017.

4.6. Fixed assets and inventories

The composition of fixed assets is presented in the table below:

As of January 01, 2018 As of January 01, 2017

ths rubles ths rubles
Fixed assets 109,123 79,390
Investments in construction, creation and acquisition of fixed assets 4,769 -
Intangible assets 41,689 13,261
|nventories 7 6
Fixed assets, intangible assets and inventories: 155,588 92,657

Movements in fixed assets are presented below:




for 2017

Book value

Balance as of January 01,
2017

Acquisitions
Disposals
Revaiuation

Balance as of January 01,
2018

Depreciation and impairment
losses

2017

Accumulated depreciation for
the quarter

Disposals
Revaluation

Balance as of January 01,
2018

Net book value

As of January 0%, 2018

Equipment, capi- Transport vehi- Furniture, etc., Intangible as- Inventories Total
tal investments capital invest- sets
ments

62,900 5,372 11,118 13,261 6 92,657
31,93¢ 2,143 10,503 28,459 14,773 87,817
{9,059) {958) {66) (31) (14,772) {24,886)
85,780 6,557 21,555 41,689 7 155,588
28,973 1,006 1,419 2,400 - 33,798
12,320 1,251 1,909 3,915 - 19,395
(1,966) {958) (27) (31) - {2,982)
39,327 1,299 3,301 6,284 - 50,211
46,453 5,258 18,254 35,405 7 105,377




]

for 2016

Book value

Balance as of January 01,
2016

Acquisitions
Disposals
Revaiuation

Balance as of January 01,
2017

Depreciation and impair-
ment losses

Batance as of January 01,
2016

Accumulated depreciation
for the quarter

Disposals
Revaluation

Balance as of January 01,
2017

Net book value

As of January 01, 2017

Equipment, capi- Transport vehi- Furniture, etc.,, Intangible as- Inventories Total
tal investments cles capital invest- sets
ments
34,920 1,109 2,154 - - 38,183
28,808 4,414 9,026 13,261 11,232 66,741
(828) {151) (62) . (11,226) (12,267)
62,900 5,372 11,118 13,261 6 92,657
23,259 1,109 1,324 - - 25,692
6,542 48 157 2,400 - 9,147
(828) {(151) (62) - - {1,041)
28,973 1,006 1,419 2,400 - 33,798
33,927 4,366 9,699 10,861 6 58,859

As of December 31, 2017, the Bank’s ownership to its fixed assets is not restricted.

To all groups of homogenous fixed assets, except for Group 10 (property with useful life over 30 years) “Build-
ings”, the Bank applies accounting at the original cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated revaluation

losses.

To fixed assets Group 10 (property with useful life over 30 years) “Buildings” the Bank applies accounting at

revaiued book value.

The revaluation is carried out on an annual basis.

As of December 31, 2017, the Bank's balance sheet does not include any fixed assets included in Group 10

“Buildings”, therefore, no revaluation shall be carried out.

4.7. Other assets
The volume, structure and changes of the carried balances of other assets, including those due to impairment,

are presented in the table below broken down by type of other assets:




As of January 01, 2018 As of January 01, 2017
ths rubles ths rubles

Financial, total 178,882 144,035
including:

Claims on interest 164,844 141,239
Claims on overdue interest 8,453 -
Claims on commissions for documentary letters of credit 532 36
Claims on commissions for loan agreements 3,727 2,576
Factoring commissions 1,276 -
Other commissions 50 69
Other assets - 115
Non-financial, total 29,534 22,439
including:

Settlements with the budget and non-budgetary funds 385 -
Settlements in respect of remunerations payment 489 -
Accounts receivable 26,564 18,053
Other 2,096 4,386
Total before deduction of the provision for impairment 208,416 166,474
Provision for impairment of other assets (28,063) (17,783)
Total after deduction of the provision for impairment 180,353 148,691

Other assets comprise short-term and long-term receivables.
information on maturity terms of other assets as of January 01, 2018 (before provision for possible losses) is

e

presented in the table below:

As of January 01, 2018 ths rubles
Up to 30 days From 31 to 90 From 81 to 180 From 181 days Over 1 year Total
days days to 1 year
Financial, total 56,025 52,413 37,998 32,425 21 178,882
including:
43,345 51,086 37,967 32,425 21 4

Claims on interest ’ ! ’ 164,844
Claims on overdue in- 8,453 . 3 . i 8,453
terest
Claims on commissicns
for documentary letters 314 187 31 - 532
of credit
Claims on commissions 2,587 1,240 i . i 3,727
for loan agreements

. . 1,276 - - - 1,276
Factoring commissions

0 “ - -
Other commissions g 50
Other assets i i ’ : : i
8,881 8,947 1,065 10,174

Non-financial, total ! ’ * ’ 467 29,534
including:
Settlements with the
budget and non-budget- 385 - - -
ary funds
Settlements in respect
of remunerations pay- 43 446 . -
ment




Up to 30 days From 31to 90 | From 91t0180 | From 181 days Over 1 year Total
days days to 1 year
6,357 8,501 1,065 10,174 467
Accounts receivable ! ! ’ ! 26,564
2,096 - - - “ 2,096
Other ' %0
Total before deduction
of the provision for im- 64,906 61,360 39,063 42,599 488 208,416
pairment
Provision for impairment of other assets (28,063)
Total after deduction of the provision for impairment 180,353
As of January 01, 2017 ths rubles
Up to 30 days From 31 to 90 From 91 to 180 | From 181 days Over 1 year Total
days days to 1 year
Financial, total 30,011 29,984 36,610 18,506 28,924 144,035
including:
29,809 29,984 36,610 18,488 26,348 141,239
Claims on interest
Commissions on letters 18 ) ) 18 i 36
of credit
Clalms on loan agree- i i ] 2,576 2,576
ments
69 - - - - 69
Other commissions
115 - - - - 115
Other
196 8,245 1,403 10,917 1,678 22,439
Non-financial, total ’ ! ' !
including:
Settlements with the
budget and non-hudget- - - - - - -
ary funds
196 8,175 1,368 7,140 1,174 18,05
Accounts receivable ! ’ 1053
- 70 35 3,777 504 4,386
Other ,
Total before deduction
of the provision for im- 30,207 38,229 38,013 29,423 30,602 166,474
pairment
Pravision for impair-
222 867, 882 14,101 1,711
ment of other assets f222) (867) 882) f / (1,711) (17,783)
Total after deduction of
the provision for im- 29,985 37,362 37,131 15,322 28,891 148,691
pairment
By currency (as of January 01, 2018):
RUB usp CNY EUR Totol
(643) (840} (156} (978}
Financial, total 57,044 80,250 36,278 5,310 178,882

including:

Claims on interest

55,719

70,428

Vet

164,844

Claims on overdue interest

8,453




Claims on commlssions for documentary let-

ters of credit i ’ s01 3 532
Claims on commissions for loan agreements - 1,368 2,359 - 3,727
Factoring commissions 1,276 - - - 1,276
Other commmissions 49 1 - - 50
Other assets - - . - -
Non-financial, total 29,534 - -

R

including:
Setilements with the budget and non-budget- 385 i i i 385
ary funds
Settlements in respect of remunerations pay- 489 . ) § 489
ment
Accounts receivable 26,564 - - - 26,564
Other 2,096 - . . 2,096
Total'before deduction of the provision for 86,578 80,250 16,278 5,310 208,416
impairment
Pravision for impairment of other assets {28,063)
Total after deduction of the provision for impairment 180,353
By currency {as of January 01, 2017):
RUB usp CNY Total
(810} (840} {156)
Financial, total 44,558 73,436 26,041 144,035

including:

Clatms on interest

23,677

141,239

Commissions on letters of credit

36

36

Claims on loan agreements

2,328

2,336

Other commissions

Other

Non-financial, total

including:

Settlements with the budget and non-budgetary i i ) ]
funds

Accounts receivable 18,052 1 - 18,053
QOther 4,386 - - 4,386
To:cal before deduction of the provision for im- 66,996 73,437 26,041 166,474
pairment

Provision for impairment of other assets {17,783)
Totai after deduction of the provision for impairment 148,691

4.8. Funds due to credit institutions
Balances due to credit institutions with a breakdown into separate types of accounts are represented in the

table below:




As of January 01, 2018 As of January 01, 2017

ths rubles ths rubles
VOSTRO accounts 6,730,137 10,521,513
Interbank credits and deposits 3,154,873 5,981,887
Subordinated loans ) 2,880,010 3,032,845
12,765,020 19,536,245

Information about terms and maturity of subordinated loan is provided below:

Balance sheet value, ths rubles

Rate, As of January 01,
Disbursement % 2018  As of January 01, 2017
Counterparty name date Maturity date ths rubles ths rubles
ICBC LTD BEUING 29.10.2013 30.10.2023 2.87 2,880,010 3,032,845

In 2017, Bank ICBC (ISC) expanded its cooperation with Russian and Chinese financial institutions and estab-
lished correspondent relations and opened accounts in various currencies to nineteen Russian banks. To increase
its presence on interbank and currency conversion markets the Bank kept concluding contracts with Russian and
foreign banks.

With the Bank as an intermediary, two more Russian banks became indirect participants of the Cross-Border
Interbank Payment System (CIPS) established under the supervision of the National Bank of China. The status of an
indirect CIPS participant was granted to Expobank LLC and JSCB Novikombank.

tn 2017, trilateral agreements were signed also among Bank ICBC (JSC), Russian banks as a loro correspond-
ent and China Union Pay. This allowed Russian banks to use correspondent accounts opened with Bank ICBC (1SC)
for settlements with China Union Pay payment cards.

Marketing activity of the Bank aimed at fostering settlements in CNY among Russian banks, its measures to
stimulate account balances kept at the Bank and promoting settlements through Bank ICBC (ISC) contributed to
increased volumes of operations in CNY.

Having the status of a Clearing Bank for settlements in CNY in the territory of the Russian Federation, in late
2017, the Bank reduced its tariffs for operations in CNY in order to make them as acceptable as possible to coun-
terparty banks and thus to encourage the use of the Chinese Yuan as a means of settlement,

Via the ICBC payment system registered in the Bank 2017 saw over 2,594 payments in the total amount of
248,074,529 rubles, which is more by 21% in terms of transactions as compared with 2016 {2016: 2,041 payment)
and by 30% in terms of funds transferred (2016: 173,358,151 rubles}.

As of January 01, 2018, the amount of raised interbank loans decreased. Such decrease is due to the Bank's
active use of financial instruments of forward transactions (SWAPs), as well as significant raising of funds from the
Bank's customers and an increase in balances on accounts of counterparty banks.

Despite this as well as for the purposes of scheduled development of new business directions, the Bank con-
tinues to remain active and further expand its counterparty and resource base,

At present the Bank’s key correspondents and counterparties are sound and reliable financial institutions.

4.9. Funds due to customers other than credit institutions

Balances on settlement and deposit accounts of customers being legal entities and individuals, by account
type are presented in the table below:




As of fanuary 01, 2018

As of January 01, 2017

ths rubles ths rubles

Legal entities: 21,410,020 24,486,275
- Uncomgleted transfers of customers 1,239,269 -
- Current / settlement accounts 7,368,122 10,071,992
- Funds in settiements - -
- Fixed-term depaosits 12,363,822 14,251,933
- Other attracted funds 438,807 162,350
Individuals: 103 3
- Funds in settlements 3 3
- Current accounts - -
- Deposits 100 -

21,410,123 24,486,278

The funds of individuals are represented by deposits and funds in settiements {transfers) of individuals.

To sustain the Bank’s image and strengthen its status of a reliable credit institution, as well as to expand its
customer base, the Bank constantly works to develop and introduce personalized client servicing for large-scale
customers.

In 2017 the Bank was active to attract new customers represented by large Russian and foreign companies.
Cooperation with them made it possible for the Bank to continue expansion of its presence on the corporate lending

market,

Below is the breakdown of customers balances by economy sector:

. L As of January 01, 201 As of January 01, 2017
Type of business activity
ths ruble ths rubles|
Funds of legal entities, residents - total 19,243,572 23,524,883
including:
WGRICULTURE, FORESTRY, HUNTING, FISHING AND FISH FARMING 155,336 113,477
EXTRACTION OF MINERALS 261,316 148,325
MANUFACTURING 5,886,389 2,397,648
PRODUCTION AND DISTRIBUTION OF POWER, GAS AND STEAM; AIR CONDI- 2,417,510
TIONING 5,355,430
CONSTRUCTION 4,456,653 8,479
WHOLESALE AND RETAIL TRADING; REPAIR OF MOTOR VEHICLES AND MO- 2,886,544
TORCYCLES 11,869,636
TRANSPORTATION AND STORAGE 488,103 949,391
HOTELS AND RESTAURANTS (HORECA} 2,047 1,442
COMPMUNICATION AND INFORMATION 64,301 35,659
FINANCE AND INSURANCE 316,267 1,167,429
OPERATIONS WITH IMMOVABLE PROPERTY 760,146 341,541
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES, RESEARCH AND TECHNOLOGIES 1,539,764 1,134,515
IADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER ACCOMPANYING SERVICES 5,176 1,865
= CULTURE, SPORTS AND LEISURE
=] WATER SUPPLY; WATER DISPOSAL, WASTE COLLECTION AND MANAGEMENT,
: POLLUTION RESPONSE
OTHER SERVICES




CAn

As 1,2 f }
Type of business activity of January 01, 2018 As of January 01, 2017,
ths rubles ths rubles
Funds of legal entities, non-residents - total 927,179 961,392
Uncompleted transfers of customers 1,239,269 -
Funds of individuals - total 103 3
Funds due to customers, total 21,410,123 24,486,278

4.10. Financial liabilities assessed at fair value through profit or loss
There are no financial liabilities assessed at fair value through profit or loss as of January 01, 2018 on the
Bank’s balance sheet,

As of January 01, As of January 01,

2018 2017
ths rubles ths rubles
Derivative financial instruments with expected reduction ¢f economic
benefits (swap with an underlying asset - foreign currency) “ 1,305
Financial liabilities assessed at fair value through profit or loss - 1,305
4.11. Tax liabilities
As of january 01, 2018 As of lanuary 01, 2017
ths rubles ths rubles
Current income tax liabilities 5,170 26,616

Deferred tax liability - -

The current income tax liability occurred as a result of calculation of income tax on interest income received
from government and municipal bonds in December 2017,

4.12, Other liabilities

Interest payment liabilities
Other accounts payable
Unearned revenues

Other

Total other financial liahilities

Accounts payable including debt on other taxes

Total other nan-financial liabilities

As of tanuary 01, 2018

As of January 01, 2017

ths rubles ths rubles
278,048 183,575
365 5]
772 347
124,155 1,011
403,340 184,938
99,827 76,925
99,827 76,925
503,167 261,863

Information on other liabilities by maturity is presented in the below table:

Upto 1 year
QOver 1 year

Total other liabilities

As of January 01, 2018

As of January 01, 2017

ths rubles ths rubles

278,260 103,667

DASOTL L 1sgge
261,363

03,167

At




By currency (as of January 01, 2018):

RUB UsD EUR CNY Total
(810) (840) {978) (156)
Financial, total 4,609 163,677 - 235,054 403,340

including!

Interest payment liabilities 3,772 48,476 - 225,800 278,048
Other accounts payable 3 2 - 360 365
Unearned revenues 772 - - - 772
Other 62 115,189 - 8,894 124,155
Non-financial, total - - - 99,827

including:

Accounts payable including debt on

99,827 . . . 98,827
other taxes
Total other liabilities 104,436 163,677 - 235,054 503,167
By currency (as of January 01, 2017):
RUB usp EUR CNY Total
{810) (840} {978) (156)
Financial, total 28,906 11 153 747

including:

Interest payment liabilities 1,924 27,893 11 153,747 183,575
Other accounts payable 3 2 - B 5
Unearned revenues 347 “ - - 347
Other - 1,011 - - 1,011

Non-financial, total

including:
Accounts payable including debt on
76,925 - - - 76,925
other taxes
Total other liabilities 79,199 28,906 11 153,747 261,863

4.13. Share capital of the Bank

By the decision of the Shareholder and in accordance with the registration by the Bank of Russia of the addi-
tional share issue report, on March 27, 2017, the Bank increased its share capital. The additional issue was 340,000
shares, with the par value of 25 ths rubles each.

As of January 01, 2018, the Bank’s registered share capital amounts to 10,809,500 ths rubles and consists of
432,380 ordinary registered non-certificated shares with the par value of 25 ths rubles each.

5. Accompanying information to the Statement of financial results.
5.1. Losses and provisions for losses

Information about losses and impairment reversal amounts in respect of e
presented as compared with 2016:

type of assets for 2017 s~




Provision for
Loans & loan equiv- Funds on corre- Securities held- P osslbl;:osses Other as-
alents and interests spondent ac- to-maturity on credit-re- sets Total
counts lated contin-
ths rubles gencies
As of January 01, 138,561 - 10,720 149,281
2016
Creaticn 620,719 63,700 249,792 5,886 72,905 1,013,002
Reversal 523,469 63,760 245,792 5,169 66,188 908,318
Withdrawals - - - - (71) (71)
As of January 01, 235,811 - - 717 17,366 253,894
2017
Provision for
Loans & loan equiv- Funds on corre- Securities held- posslblc;{osses Other as-
alents and interests spondent ac- to-maturity on credit-re- sets Total
counts lated contin-
ths rubles gencies
As of January 01, 235,811 - - 717 17,366 253,894
2017
Creation 318,633 - - 147,183 238,766 704,582
Reversal 261,540 - - 128,332 229,282 619,154
Withdrawals - - - - - -
As of January 01, 292,904 19,568 26,850 339,322
2018

5.2, Information about foreign exchange differences recognized as profit or loss

The net income/({loss) from foreign currency operations is presented as follows:

Income from forelgn currency operations
Expenses from foreign currency operations

Net income from foreign exchange operations
income from foreign currency revaluation
Expenses from foreign currency revaluation

Net income from foreign currency revaluation

Total net income/(loss} from foreign currency operations

As of January 01, 2018 As of January 01, 2017
ths rubles ths rubles
4,403,862 3,092,780
(4,535,211) (2,950,218)
{131,349} 142,562
38,017,669 92,316,539
(36,966,370} {92,305,069)
1,051,299 11,470
919,950 154,032




5.3. information about the main components of income tax expenses (refund}

Property tax

VAT paid for goods and services

VAT paid for non-deductible goods and services
Transport tax

Paid state duty

Tax on income from state securities

Tax withheld by tax agent

20% income tax

Increase {reduction) of income tax by deferred income tax

Income tax expense

During 2017 no new taxes were imposed. Tax rates did not change.

5.4, Information about emoluments to employees

Personnel expenses and other employee emoluments include the following components:

Salary of employees
Taxes and payroll contributions
Other personnel expenses

Personnel expenses

5.5. Information about fixed assets retirement

As of January 01,

2018  Asof January 01, 2037
ths rubles ths rubles

177 103

26,185 22,019

1,948 1,081

16 13

313 213

33,471 10,169

446 15,832

236,037 320,316

- (119)

298,593 369,627
As of January 01, 2018 As of January 01, 2017
ths rubles ths rubles

456,595 463,962

43,967 36,646

2,131 1,775

502,693 502,383

In 2017, there was retirement of fixed assets. The retired fixed assets were inseparable improvements in the

rented premises, as well as equipment, vehicles and furniture,

The reason for the retirement of inseparable improvements was the expiry of the premises lease agreement
and, as a consequence, the transfer of inseparable improvements to the lessor.
The reason for the retirement of equipment, vehicles and furniture was the expiry of useful life of those fixed

assets,

Below there are the income and expenses items that result from the retirement of fixed assets.

As of January 01, 2018 As of January 01, 2017

ths rubles ths rubles
Expenses related to equipment retirement (sale) {2,732) -
Expenses related to retirement {sale} of inseparable improvements (1,593) -
Expenses related to retirement (sale) of furniture (38) -
Total expenses related to retirement (sale} of fixed assets (4,363) -
income related to retirement (sale) of vehicles 441 -
Net financial result related to retirement of fixed assets 3972)

i

i ~ichose
-

i 1

o,
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6. Accompanying information to the Report on capital adequacy

The Bank’s capital management is aimed at the following: ensuring compliance with capital requirements, as
stipulated by the Central Bank of Russia and internal documents of the Bank, enabling functioning of the Bank as a
going concern, and maximizing profit as a result of debt to equity ratio optimization.

The policy and principles of the Bank’s equity capital management encompass actions aimed at:

- Proper risk-return balance of operations, which is achieved by selection of the most beneficial funds
placement terms and consistent observance of all mandatory and internal ratios;

- Compliance of the Bank's development strategy with the scope of its activities;

- Restricting the amount of banking operations and the risks assumed by the amount of regulatory and
available capital.

The Bank’s capital management is underpinned by correlation of risks assumed by the Bank, scope of its
activities (taking into account its development plans according to the strategy approved by the Board of Directors)
and the current level of capital adequacy ratio. To maintain a proper level of capital adequacy ratio when extending
its activities, the Bank can address its shareholder regarding a share capital increase and/or about getting a
subordinated loan,

Bank ICBC (JSC) considers that its internal procedures for assessing its capital adequacy ratio are an integral
part of its internal management system and a rationale for decision-making and takes into account the results of
the IPACAR in making strategic decisions, for the purpose of hudgeting and allocation of its available capital, granting
of loans and other lines of activity.

The procedures for capital management are developed and monitored by the Risk Management Service. The
Board of Directors, the President and the Management Board exercise permanent control over the adequacy of
Bank ICBC (JSC)'s capital, the efficiency of risk and capital management procedures applied, the compliance of those
procedures with the approved development strategy, the nature and the scope of operations, the level and
combination of risks assumed by Bank ICBC (JSC).

The Bank determined that the indicator of efficiency of the policy of internal procedures for assessing the
capital adequacy ratio shall be a sustainable growth of its equity value, provided that the requirements for its
adequacy and allocation by risk types are complied with. During capital management Bank ICBC {ISC) aspires to
execute the approved development strategies, comply with the applicable legislation, take into account limitation
of transactions by the amount of own capital, dynamism of the capital volume and structure subject to alterations
in external and internal environment factors,

Bank ICBC (JSC) daily calculates capital adequacy value and assessment indicators in accordance with
Regulation of the Central Bank of Russia dated December 28, 2012 No. 395-N “On Methods of Assessment of Equity
Funds {Capital) of Institutional Lenders (Basel Ill)” and Instruction of the Central Bank of Russia dated June 28, 2017
No. 180-¥ “On Mandatory Ratios for Banks”. The Bank developed also its methodology for internal assessment of
capital adequacy, under which the available capital, the economic capital and the internal capital adequacy ratio
are calculated at predetermined intervals.

To determine the minimum capital size sufficient to cover risks, the Board of Directors of the Bank set internal
capital adequacy ratios, which govern minimum allowed indicators of different type of available regulatory capital
to risk-weighted assets of the Bank. In order to pursue a more conservative and risk-weighted policy, the Board of
Directors set a limit of H1.0 internal ratio at the rate of 12% and an “alarm” level of 13% within the risk appetite
system in March 2017 (Minutes of the Meeting of the Board of Directors of Bank {CBC (JSC)) No. 03-17 dated March
29, 2017). For H1.1 internal ratio, the Board of Directors set a limit of 8% and an “alarm” level of 8.2% (Minutes of
the Meeting of the Board of Directors of ICBC Bank {JSC) No. 03-17 dated March 29, 2017). Throughout 2017 the
Bank observed its internal capital adequacy ratios.

Current planning of the Bank’s operations is performed with due consideration of their impact on the capital
value. Risk-weighted transactions, whenever required, shall be structured differently to bring the capital level back
to the required level.

The Bank regularly monitors the regulatory requirements established for credit i
calculation of the capital value and adequacy. The Bank maintains the capital a
meets the nature and scope of operatuons conducted by the Bank.

regulator.




The Management Board of ICBC Bank (JSC) approved the internal procedures for assessing the capital
adequacy ratio {(IPACAR), that are the procedures for assessing by ICBC Bank (ISC) the adequacy of its available
capital, i.e. the capital to cover its assumed and potential risks, and that include as well the procedures for capital
planning hased on the adopted development strategy, business growth benchmarks, results of comprehensive
current risk assessment and stress testing of internal and external risk factors tolerance. The IPACAR are designed
to align the risk management and the capital management so that the capital covers all significant risks of {CBC Bank
(JSC). The risk assessment procedures shall arrive at a comprehensive picture for the risk management, the
Management, the Board of Directors, the Shareholder and external users. In this case, the indicator of efficiency of
the IPACAR policy shall be the provision of capital required to cover the risks assumed by ICBC Bank (JSC) in
accordance with the risk appetite indicators and the keeping of significant risks at a level not threatening the activity
of ICBC Bank {JSC). During capital management Bank ICBC (JSC} aspires to execute the approved development
strategies, comply with the applicable legislation, take into account limitation of transactions by the amount of own
capital, dynamism of the capital volume and structure subject to alterations in external and internal environment
factors.

6.1. Information about maturities, terms and main parameters of capital instruments of the credit
institution and its approaches to capital adequacy assessment for continued current and future activity

Main capital instruments

Share capital

The declared, issued and fully paid share capital includes the following components:

As of January 01, 2018 As of January 01, 2017
ths rubles ths rubles
Number of shares Nominal value Number of shares Nominal value
Commeon shares 432,380 10,809,500 92,380 2,309,500
Share capital 432,380 10,808,500 92,380 2,309,500

The Bank’s share capital fully belongs to Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited Joint-Stock
Company,

Share premium
The Bank has no share premium.
Reserve fund
According to Federal Law No. 208-FZ “On Joint-Stock Companies” and the Articles of Association, the Bank
shall form its reserve fund to cover possible losses on its operations at the expense of annual deductions from net
profit,
The size of the reserve fund is 10% of the Bank’s registered Authorized Capital.
The annual deductions to the reserve fund shall amount to 5% from net profit and shall be made until the

reserve fund reaches the minimum size established by the Articles of Association of the Bank.

The reserve fund amounts to:

As of Ja nuar\éfdl';azzﬁi 8: .. Asof January 01,2017

ths rubles ths rubles

Reserve fund
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Additional capital instruments

Subordinated loans

As of January 01, 2018, the Bank had one subordinated loan for the total amount of 2,880,010 ths rubles with
maturity on October 30, 2023, During 2017 the Bank did not conclude any new contracts for raising subordinated
loans.

The table below presents the regulatory capital as prepared by the Bank in its statutory reporis in accordance
with the Requirements of the Russian legislation. The comparative data for the previous reporting period was
calculated in accordance with the procedure of statutory reporting under form 0409123 “Calculation of Equity Funds
(Capital) (Basel 1It)”":

As of January 01, 2018 As of January 01, 2017

ths rubles ths rubles
Core capital 12,672,062 4,473,920
Additional capital 3,985,837 4,347,726
Regulatory capital 16,657,899 8,821,646

in accordance with the requirements of Regulations of the Central Bank of Russia dated December 28, 2012
No. 395-11 “On the Methods of Assessment of Equity Funds (Capital) of Institutional Lenders (Basel Ill)”, the Bank’s
capital adequacy ratios were the following:

Minimum allowable As of January 1, 2018,

value, % %
Equity capital adequacy ratio H 1.0 (%) 8.0 37.8
Core capital adequacy ratio H 1.1 {%) 4.5 28.7
Main capital adequacy ratio H 1.2 (%) 6.0 28.7

In the reporting period, the Bank observed the minimum allowed value of the capital adequacy ratio.

During the reporting year, by results of the annual meeting of the Bank’s Shareholder held on June 26, 2017,
the decision was made to pay dividends by results of the Bank’s performance in 2015 and 2016.

Dividend payment obligations amounted to 1,516,422 ths rubles. The payment was made on August 15, 2017
in full.

6.2. Information on the Balance Sheet data sourcing preparation of Section 1 of the Report on capital
adequacy

Balance Sheet Report on Capital adequacy {Section 1)
No
' Amount as of
Narrative Line the reporting Narrative Line Amountl as of the
code d code reporting date
ate
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
"Shareholder (participants}
A\ I?Sh re : n -
1 ::lnds ,Share premium’, 10- | 54 96 | 10,809,500 X
4
including:
" H
1.1 | Those treated as Core capital X 10,809,500 Sharfa capital and Share
premium, total,




Balance Sheet

Report on Capital adequacy (Section 1)

No
' . Amaount as of .
Natrative Line the reporiing Narrative Line Amount.as of the
code code reporting date
date
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
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Balance Sheet

Report on Capital adequacy {Section 1)

No.
. Line Amount as‘ of . Line Amount as of the
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code code reporting date
date
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
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Balance Sheet Report on Capital adequacy (Section 1)
No, :
. Line Amount as' of . Line Amount as of the
Narrative the reporting Narrative -
code code reporting date
date
1 2 3 4 5 6 7
1 .Other assets" total, includ- 12 180,353 X X X
ing:
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7. Accompanying information to the mandatory ratios and financial leverage indicator.

7.1. Mandatory ratios

Mandatory ratios calculated as of January 01, 2018 are presented in the table below:

)

E

il

Mandatory ratios Regulatory | Calculated ratios at | Calculation of ra-
requirement the current ex- tios
change rate {as of January 01,
{as of January 01, 2017), %
2018), %
Core capital adequacy ratio {(H1.1) Min 4.5% 28.7 10.3
Main capital adequacy ratio {H1.2} Min 6% 28.7 10.3
Equity {capltal) adequacy ratio {H1.0) Min 8% 37.8 20.3
Ratio of instant liquidity {H2) Min 15% 38.0 49.1
Ratio of current liguidity (H3) Min 50% 63.8 76.4
Ratio of long-term liquidity (H4) Max 120% 73.8 64.4
Ratio of maximum risk per one borrower or group of related borrowers (H6) Max 25% 171 19.8
Ratio of maximum large credit risk exposure (H7) Max 800% 190.1 269.2
Ratio of maximum exposure to credit, guarantees and sureties provided by the Max 50% 5.3 19.8
Bank to its shareholders {H9.1)
Ratio of maximum exposure per person (group of persons) related to the Bank Max 20% 5.3 -
(H25)

There were no significant changes in the calculation methodology of ratios in 2017, There were no violations

by the Bank of mandatory ratios during the reporting period.

7.2. Data for financial leverage indicator

As of January 01, 2018, the Bank calculated the financial leverage indicator, The financial leverage indicator
is calculated as relation of the Bank’s capital to the aggregate value of:

- Assets accounted for in the books subject to revaluation;

- Credit-related contingent liabilities; and




- Credit risk on term transactions and derivative financial instruments less provision for possible iosses on
foans and loan equivalents or provision for possible losses,

The financial leverage indicator is presented in the table below:

As of January 01, 2018
Main capital, ths rubles 12,672,062
Value of balance sheet assets and off-balance sheet claims at risk for 55,566,117
calculation of financial leverage, ths rubles
Financial leverage under Basel Hl, % 22.8

The Bank had no considerable differences between the size of assets calculated according to the balance
sheet {taking into account adjustments) and balance sheet assets used for calculation of the financial leverage as
of January 01, 2018.

Components of financial leverage as of January 01, 2018:

- The amount of assets in accordance with the balance sheet {pubiic disciosure form 0409806) is 48,517,666
ths rubles as of January 01, 2018;

- An adjustment to reduce credit-related contingencies to the credit equivalent is 8,251,710 ths rubles as
of January 01, 2018;

- A decreasing adjustment by the amount of indicators taken to reduce the amount of fixed capital sources
is 37,501 ths rubles in terms of future expenses and intangible assets as of January 01, 2018;

- A decreasing adjustment by the amount of indicators taken to reduce the amount of balance sheet assets
is 1,165,758 ths rubles in terms of required reserves deposited with the Bank of Russia and the security deposit of
the payment system operator as of January 01, 2018,

8. Accompanying information to the Statement of cash flows.

8.1. Information on material balances of cash and cash equivalents possessed by the Bank but unavailable
for use

The amount of material cash balances not available for use as of January 01, 2018 was 1,165,758 ths rubles
where: funds deposited with the Central Bank of Russia (Mandatory Reserve Fund} 348,760 ths rubles, and the

security deposit of an operator of the payment system 816,998 ths rubles.

8.2. Information on material investment and financial operations not requiring use of cash
In the reporting period there were no material investment and financial operations not requiring use of cash.

8.3. Information on unutilized credit facilities with indication of the existing restrictions for their use
As of January 01, 2018, the Bank does not have any credit facilities with restrictions on their use.

8.4. Information on cash flows:

As of January 01, 2018 As of January 01, 2017

Cash and cash equivalents ths rubles ths rubles
Cash 30,275 98,124
Accounts with the Central Bank of Russia {except for the mandatory reserves and the

security deposit of an operator of the payment system) 2,761,587 2,616,761
Funds due from credit institutions - residents 40,530 32,722
Funds due from credit institutions - non-residents 2,254,946 6,733,361

Total cash and cash equivalents 9,481,968

The information on cash flows with a breakdown into geographical areas is |
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As of January 01, 2018 ths rubles
Russ'at'l‘o';fde'a' OECD Southeast Asia Total
Cash 30,275 - - 30,275
IAccounts with the Central Bank of Russia {except for
the mandatory reserves and the security deposit of
an operator of the payment system) 2,761,587 - - 2,761,587
Funds due from credit institutions - residents 40,530 - - 40,530
Funds due from credit institutions - non-residents - 187,084 2,067,862 2,254,946
[Tota! cash and cash equivalents 2,832,392 187,084 2,067,862 5,087,338
As of January 01, 2017 ths rubles
Russwtri\:nedera- OECD Southeast Asia Total
Cash 95,124 - - §9,124
IAccounts with the Central Bank of Russia (except for
the mandatory reserves and the security deposit of
an operator of the payment system) 2,616,761 - - 2,616,761
Funds due from credit institutions - residents 32,722 - - 32,722
Funds due from credit institutions - non-residents - 4,969,325 1,764,036 6,733,361
Total cash and cash equivalents 2,748,607 4,969,325 1,764,036 9,481,968

According to the reporting form 0409814 “Statement of cash flows” as of January 01, 2018 the value of line
5 “Increase/use of cash and cash equivalents” was {4,394,630) ths rubles.

Cash outflow for 2017 was impacted by the following:

- Change in line 1.2.6 “Net increase/decrease in funds due to other credit institutions” in the total of
(6,821,051) ths rubles;

- Change in fine 1.2.7 “Net increase/decrease in funds due to other customers, other than credit institutions”
in the total of (1,858,369} ths rubles;

- Change in line 2.3 “Acquisition of securities held to maturity” in the total of (3,891,529} ths rubles;

- Change in line 3.1 “Contributions of shareholders {participants} to the share capital” in the total of 8,500,000
ths rubles;

9. Information on risks assumed by the credit institution and procedures of their assessment,
measurement, monitoring and control.

9.1. Information on types and sources of significant risks affecting the credit institution

In its activities the Bank is exposed to banking risks, which shall be understood as a possibility of losses
inherent to banking due to potential occurrence of unfavourable events related to internal and/or external factors.
Currently, Bank ICBC (ISC) divides its significant risks into the following types:
- The credit risk is a risk arisen in relation to the probability of nonfulfillment of contractual obligations by thi
borrower or contractor to Bank ICBC {JSC);
- The market risk is a risk of financial Iosses (expenses) due to change in the ﬁa!r vatue of f: '

exchange risk, interest rate risk of the business book and commodlty risk;
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- The liquidity risk is a risk of losses resulting from the Bank’s failure to ensure complete performance of its
obligations. Liquidity risk arises as a result of unbalanced financial assets and liabilities of the Bank {including due to
any delay in performance of financial liabilities by one or several counterparties of the Bank)), and/or an unforeseen
need for immediate and one-off discharge by the Bank of its financial liabilities.

- The concentration risk is a risk arising due to the Bank’s exposure to major risks, the occurrence of which
may lead to material losses that may threaten the credit institution’s solvency and its ability to continue its
operation.

- The interest rate risk of the Bank book is a risk of deterioration of financial state of Bank JCBC (JSC) due to
the decrease in capital, income level, asset value due to the change in interest rates on the market,

9.2. Information on risks assumed by Bank ICBC (ISC), their assessment procedures, risk and capital
management,

One of the most important strategic tasks of the Bank is keeping banking risks low and thus acceptable for
the Bank’s Shareholder and creditors. To achieve this goal the Bank has established a risk management system that
provides for a set of inter-related measures and procedures aimed at prevention and minimization of damage, which
may arise for the Bank as a result of realized banking risks.

The Board of Directors of ICBC Bank {iSC) developed and approved (by Minutes of the Meeting of the Board
of Directors of {CBC Bank {ISC) No. 12-16 dated December 28, 2016} the Risk and Capital Management Strategy that
determines the structure of management bodies and subdivisions performing the functions related to the risk and
capital management of Bank ICBC (JSC), the allocation of functions related to the risk and capital management, the
organization of control exercised by the Board of Directors and the executive bodies over the implementation of
the IPACAR, the approaches to organization of the risk management system, the time limits for which the amount
of operations (transactions) and capital is planned, the composition of IPACAR reports, the procedure and frequency
of informing the Board of Directors of any identified deficiencies in the risk assessment and management
methodology, the achievement of alarm values, the exceeding of set limits and actions taken to eliminate it, the
procedure for taking measures in order to mitigate risks on the basis of information contained in the IPACAR reports.

The risk and capital management strategy determines that the risk management is important as it enables to
identify risk factors, to assess the value of possible damage, to forecast to a certain extent the occurrence of a risk
event, to take in advance measures required to mitigate potential adverse effects of or to eliminate the risk factors
in full. The risk management is required to create the conditions for stable operation of ICBC Bank {JSC), to optimize
its regulatory capital, to comply with the requirements of supervisory authorities, customers and counterparties.

The purpose of risk and capital management is:

- Maintaining an acceptable level of risk limited by the risk appetite;

- Ensuring the adequacy of economic and regulatory capital to cover significant risks;

- Compliance with the requirements of the Bank of Russia in terms of requirements for the activities of credit
institutions (providing the amount of regulatory capital of Bank ICBC {ISC) that is not lower than that required by
law, complying with mandatory banking ratios, etc.);

- Protection of the interests of Bank ICBC {JSC}, its shareholder and customers.

The tasks of the risk and capital management system are as follows:

- |dentification, assessment, aggregation of significant risks of ICBC Bank {ISC) and control over their level;

- Ensuring efficient allocation of resources to optimize the risk-return ratio of the operations carried out by
ICBC Bank {JSC);

- Assessing the adeqguacy of economic and regulatory capital to cover significant risks;

- Planning of the economic capital by results of comprehensive assessment of significant risks, testing the
tolerance of Bank ICBC (ISC) to internal and external risk factors, benchmarks of the ICBC Bank {(JSC)’s development
strategy, the Bank of Russia's requirements to the regulatory capital adequacy;

- Establishing a risk and capital management system at the time of an existing negative trend, as well as setting
up an efficient early warning system to prevent critically high values of the risks for Bank ICBC {J5C) (i.e. risk
minimization).

In the course of risk and capital management ICBC Bank (JSC) is governed

and/or influence the risk management process;




- The completeness principle that implies the interaction of all subdivisions of Bank ICBC (ISC) in the
identifying and assessing banking risks by areas of activity;

- The principle of team decision-making in the carrying out of banking operations, the provision of services
{products), that implies the making of a team decision in cases provided for by the Bank’s internal regulatory
documents;

- The principle of informational sufficiency of decision-making in the risk management, that implies the
collection, comprehensive analysis and provision of information to the management bodies of ICBC Bank (ISC)
required to make a balanced, unbiased and timely decision;

- The principle of updating, that implies updating of risk management methods and procedures in accordance
with changes in the business environment and internal structural changes, constant monitoring of the adequacy of
risk and capital management methods applied and their timely updating.

Maximum integrity of the Bank’s assets and capital supported by mitigation of risk exposure, which may
otherwise realize in any unexpected loss, shall be the Bank’s priority.

Risk management is also performed by the Bank for the purposes of:

- Identification, measurement and assessment of an acceptable level of the aggregate banking risk;

- Protection of interests of the Bank and of the Bank’s customers;

- Constant monitoring of the aggregate banking risk;

- Adoption of measures aimed at maintenance of the aggregate banking risk at a level not threatening to the
Bank’s financial stability and interests of its creditors and depositors;

- Observance by all the Bank’s employees of laws, regulations and of the internal banking rules and
procedures,

The purpose of the aggregate banking risk management by the Bank is achieved by means of a systematic
and comprehensive approach involving the following:

- Obtaining timely and objective data on the condition and size of all the Bank’s risks affecting the level of the
aggregate banking risk; '

- Qualitative and quantitative assessment {measurement) of the aggregate banking risk;

- {dentification of correlation between different types of risks to assess an effect of the measures intended to
be taken to limit any particular risk on increase or decrease of other risks;

- Establishing a risk management system for the risks assumed by the Bank and for the aggregate banking risk
management at the time of an existing negative trend, as well as setting up an efficient early warning system to
prevent critically high values of the risks for the Bank (i.e. risk minimization).

The main purpose of financial protection from banking risks shall be establishment of provisions for potential
financial losses, if they occur. The Bank applies a range of financial instruments and resources available to protect
its business from financial losses, The Bank’s losses may be covered at the expense of two sources: set up provisions
and the Bank’s equity capital. The Bank’s risk management system functions in a way that expected losses (e.g., on
the loan portfolio) shall be covered at the expense of established provisions. Unexpected losses shall be covered at
the expense of the Bank’s equity capital. Accordingly, the amount of the Bank's provisions and capital has an impact
on the risk size assumed by the Bank.

To assess an overall impact of the risks assumed, the Bank calculates and further analyses the economic
capital and its correlation with available capital, To this end the Bank puts a part of the available {on hand) capital
aside as a reserve (necessary to cover current and expected risks and, on the other hand, to ensure the Bank’s
continued business in case of such risks realization) for the assumed aggregate risk and also allocates the economic
capital between different risk types depending on their relevance to the Bank’s activities. The Bank regularly plans
its capital size subject to various external factors and planned banking operations.

in order to control the adequacy of own funds (equity}, the Risk Management Service monitors daily the
current value of capital adequacy indicators within the risk appetite system of Bank ICBC (JSC) and within the contro!
over the amount of economic capital and its correlation with the amount. of regulatory capital. The Risk
Management Service informs the Board of Directors and the Risk Committee at legst oncé-a quarterof the adequacy '/
of the available capital, and in case of identification (occurrence) of any material '
capital adequacy ratio, such information shall be reported immediately.




The Risk Management Service shall also prepare and submit reports to the Risk Committee on significant risks
of ICBC Bank (JSC) on a monthly basis and complete reports on all risks and the capital adequacy ratio on a quarterly
basis; having been considered by the Risk Committee, such information is also submitted to the Board of Directors
for consideration at least once a quarter. Reports on stress testing results are considered by the Risk Committee
and the Board of Directors at the following intervals:

- On market risk {interest rate risk of the business book, foreign exchange, equity and commodity risk) and
interest rate risk of the Bank’s book, at least once a quarter;

- On liquidity risk, at least once every six months;

- On credit risk and concentration risk, at least once a year.

The Risk Management Service submits reports to the parent bank, ICBC Ltd. on a regular basis:

- Market risk reports, on a monthly basis;
- Reports on operational risk, reputation risk, risk appetite, comprehensive risk report, on a quarterly basis;

- Stress testing results, on a guarterly basis;

- Scenario analysis results, on an annual basis.

For the purposes of identification and monitoring of risks and development of risk minimization procedures,
the Bank has an independent operating structural subdivision (Risk Management Service) reporting directly to the
Bank’s President. The main objectives of the Risk Management Service shall be:

~ ldentification, assessment, current control and recommendations regarding risk minimization in the Bank,
compliant with the strategy determined by the Bank’s Board of Directors; and

- On-going control over banking operations carried out by the Bank’s Treasury.

To achieve its objectives the Risk Management Service of the Bank

- Implements and supports a comprehensive risk management system for banking risks, such as credit risk,
market risk (including equity and foreign currency risks), interest rate risk, liquidity risk, legal risk, reputation risk,
country risk, strategic risk, operating risk and concentration risk;

- |dentifies origins of risks and their objects, performs risk classification and analysis;

- Identifies, assesses and aggregates risks relevant for the Bank;

- Drafts recommendations regarding risk appetite level and other risk limits at the Bank, controls risk appetite
fevels set in the Bank;

- Develops policies and procedures for stress-tests of the main risks of the Bank, performs such tests and back
testing procedures;

- Drafts recommendations for risk minimization of the Bank’s activities for the Bank’s management bodies;

- Organizes Risk Committee work;

- Monitors, controls and plans the mandatory ratio H6;

- Monitors and subsequently controls mandatory ratios H2, H3, H4, H1.0, H1.1, H1.2, as well as the open
currency position size of the Bank;

- Controls transactions performed by the Bank’s Treasury;

- Elaborates certain areas of risk management at the Bank.

For the purposes of risks management and control, the Bank has running Credit Committee, Asset and Liability
Committee and Risk Committee. Besides these, risk management functions in the Bank are performed by the Board
of Directors.

The Credit Committee has been established as a body responsible for the following:

- Analysis of credit risks;

- Decision-making regarding credit operations with legal entities and individuals;

- Establishment of credit risk limits on operations with legal entities, individuals and counterparty banks.

The main functions of the Asset and Liability Committee include the following:

- Development and implementation of the tariff policy for the Bank’s services and determination of material
terms for providing such services;

- Approval of terms and conditions for new types of banking services;

- Decision-making regarding relevance and sources of financing for proposed projects and financial programs;

- Regulation of the Bank’s asset and liability structure on the basis of a risk-re atralysi

The main functions of the Risk Committee include the following: review of the Bank’s risk.mapagement
system, inctuding but not limited to covering such risks as credit risk, market risks lopera ling i
strategic risk, reputation risk, legal risk, as well as other risks arising in the Bahk’s activities; the
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management strategy review; review of the Bank’s internal regulatory documents on risk management,
organization of risk management process in the Bank; and review of risk assessment mode!s used in the Bank.

Duties of the Board of Directors comprise selecting structure of risks management, approving control
approaches and methodologies for key banking risks, and also approving the maximum aggregate risks level which
can be covered by the Bank’s capital and its sub-limits for particular risk types. Control over the key banking risks
size and the size of the aggregate banking risk and its sub-limits is exercised by the Risk Management Service of the
Bank.

As of January 01, 2018, the Bank’s most relevant risks, subject to the type and scope of the Bank's operations,
were the following:

- The credit risk is a risk arisen in relation to the probability of nonfulfillment of contractual obligations by the
borrower or contractor to Bank ICBC (JSC);

- The market risk is a risk of financial losses (expenses) due to change in the fair value of financial instruments
as well as foreign exchange rates and/or prices for precious metals. The market risk includes equity risk, foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk of the business book and commodity risk;

- The liquidity risk is a risk of losses resulting from the Bank’s failure to ensure complete performance of its
obligations. Liquidity risk arises as a result of unbalanced financial assets and liabilities of the Bank {including due to
any delay in performance of financial liabilities by one or several counterparties of the Bank)), and/or an unforeseen
need for immediate and one-off discharge by the Bank of its financial liabilities.

- The concentration risk is a risk arising due to the Bank’s exposure to major risks, the occurrence of which
may lead to material losses that may threaten the credit institution’s solvency and its ability to continue its
operation.

- The interest rate risk of the Bank book is a risk of deterioration of financial state of Bank ICBC (JSC) due to
the decrease in capital, income level, asset value due to the change in interest rates on the market.

summary of risk management procedures and methods for their assessment:

1. The market risk is a risk of financial losses (expenses) due to change in the fair value of financial instruments
as well as foreign exchange rates and/or prices for precious metals. The market risk includes equity risk, foreign
exchange risk, interest rate risk of the business book and commodity risk.

1.1. Currency exchange risk means the risk of financial loss due to adverse changes in the exchange rates of
foreign currencies and/or accounting prices for gold for positions opened by Bank ICBC (JSC) in foreign currencies
and/or gold.

Fluctuations in the value of the national currency that create the currency exchange risk result from changes
in foreign and domestic interest rates, which, in turn, are related to differences in inflation. Being conditioned as a
rule by macroeconomic factors, those fluctuations continue for a relatively long period, although the currency
market response often contributes to the acceleration of the trend. The value of the national currency is influenced
by such macroeconomic parameters as the scope and direction of foreign trade and capital flows. The reason for
currency fluctuations may also be short-term factors, e.g. any expected or unforeseen political events, changes in
expectations of market participants or speculative foreignh exchange transactions. Those factors may influence the
currency supply and demand and thus the daily movement of market exchange rates.

The primary objective of managing and controlling the foreign exchange risk is to minimize the capital loss of
Bank ICBC (ISC) in the formation of assets and liabilities with the use of foreign currencies.

Bank ICBC (ISC) manages its foreign exchange risk through an open currency position based on the expected
impairment of the national or foreign currency and other macroeconomic indicators, that allows minimizing loss
caused by significant fluctuations of the exchange rates of the national and foreign currencies. Limits are determined
both for each currency and for all positions in all currencies. The set limits of an open currency position may not
exceed the limits set for those indicators by the Bank of Russia.

The basic ways to close a position are non-cash sale or purchase of foreign currency in the interbank market
or cash sale or purchase at cash desks and exchange offices.

The tool for making management decisions in the area of foreign exchange risk applied by Bank iCBC (JSC} is
its assessment by the delta normal method (VAR) for financial instruments denomj abed i

n:foreign 't:urreneie&anéme-ei-

gold.
The foreign exchange risk management procedures are implemented onas
- Risk identification, the open currency position and the degree of its expos

e-by-stage Egﬂ(
are dBuelitves;report

QRN 1027160658756 Mascow L SORTFT o

2 SHEROSY
N

Uo

3



CimD

-

- Quantitative assessment of the foreign exchange risk;

- Limitation, i.e. setting limits for the amount of risk for a particular currency;

- Hedging that implies opening a position that is opposite to the original one;

- Diversification, i.e. the allocation of assets and liabilities by various components, both at the leve] of
instruments and by their elements.

Based on the analysis of foreigh exchange risk:

- A relative indicator of the maximum open currency position of ICBC Bank (JSC) is set (limitation of the open
currency position),

- A relative indicator of the maximum open currency position is set for each of the foreign currencies.

1.2. The equity risk means a risk of financial loss under financial instruments that are sensitive to changes in
the fair value of equity securities.

The tool for making management decisions in the area of equity risk used by Bank ICBC (JSC} is its assessment
by the delta normal method (VAR) for equity financial instruments included in the trading portfolio. When
measuring the equity risk, the degree of possible change in the price of an equity financial instrument in a given
period of time is assessed.

The basic equity risk management methods applied by Bank ICBC {JSC) are:

- Setting limits for issuers of equity financial instruments;

- Setting limits for transactions with equity financial instruments;

- Setting dealer limits for the purchase or sale of equity financial instruments;

- Setting stop loss limits for equity financial instruments.

1.3. The interest rate risk of the business book means a risk of loss due to adverse changes in the interest
rates of the business book instruments and the trading portfolio of debt securities and derivative financial
instruments.

The tool for making management decisions in the area of interest rate risk of the business book used by Bank
ICBC (JSC} is its assessment by the delta normal method (VAR) for debt financial instruments included in the trading
portfolio and derivative financial instruments.

The basic methods of managing the interest rate risk of the business book applied by Bank ICBC (JSC) are:

- Setting limits for issuers of debt financial instruments;

- Setting limits for transactions with debt financial instruments;

- Setting dealer limits for the purchase or sale of debt financial instruments;

- Setting stop loss limits for debt financial instruments.

1.4. The commodity risk means a risk of commeodities, including precious metals (except for gold) and
derivative financial instruments that are sensitive to changes in commodity prices.

The tool for making management decisions in the area of commodity risk applied by Bank ICBC (J5C} is its
assessment by the delta normal method for financial instruments denominated in commodltles and precious metals
{except for gold).

The basic commodity risk management methods applied by Bank ICBC (JSC} are:

- Setting limits for certain groups of commodities and precious metals;

- Setting dealer limits for the purchase or sale of commodities and precious metals;

- Setting stop loss limits for groups of commodities and precious metals.

2. The interest rate risk of the Bank book is a risk of deterioration of financia! state of Bank ICBC (ISC} due to
the decrease in capital, income level, asset value due to the change in interest rates on the market.

For the purposes of assessing and analysing the interest rate risk of the Bank book, Bank ICBC (JSC) applies
the duration method and the GAP analysis with the use of VAR (Value At Risk) by means of the delta normal
approach,

Bank ICBC (JSC) applies the following approaches (standards} for managing the interest rate risk of the Bank
book:

- Allocation of powers and responsibilities among the management bodies of ICBC Bank (JSC);

- Determining rules and procedures for managing the interest rate risk of the Bank book;

- Taking measures to limit and minimize the interest rate risk of the Bank K in case the hmuts of that risk
are exceeded;

- Arranging for the internal control over the interest rate risk management

The system for measuring the Bank’s interest rate risk of the bank book sh




- Cover all materially significant sources of interest rate risk related to the Bank’s operations, in particular, to
off-balance sheef financial instruments;

- Use generally accepted financial concepts and methods of risk measurement;

- Identify occurrence of the Bank’s extreme exposure to risk {risk concentration);

- Provide methodological support and documentation for risk measurement procedures.

interest rate risk management shall include management of the Bank’s assets and liabilities. But the scope of
such management is Hmited by liquidity requirements and the credit risk of asset portfolio, the specific set and
amount of debt instruments that the Bank may offer to creditors and depositors and by price competition created
by other financial institutions. After the Bank’s position concerning revaluation is identified, balance sheet
structuring may be aimed at reducing the gap to the level close to zero, so that the Bank could be protected from
the effect of interest rate fluctuations, or at arranging the revaluation structure in such a way that allows receiving
of additional profit derived from estimated change of interest rates.

3. The liquidity risk is a risk of losses resulting from the Bank’s failure to ensure complete performance of its
obligations.

The Bank manages lauidity pursuant to the following major principles:

- Liquidity management is carried out daily and in an ongoing way;

- The methods and tools used to measure liquidity risk shall be in compliance with the regulatory documents
of the Bank of Russia, the risk management strategy, the ICBC head bank’s practices;

The Bank shall ensure clear separation of liquidity management powers and responsibility between the
management bodies and subdivisions;

- Limits shall be set to ensure proper liquidity level in view of the size and nature of the Bank's business and
its financial condition;

- When taking decisions, the Bank shall resolve the conflict between liquidity and profitability in favour of
liquidity;

- Each transaction affecting the liquidity leve! shall be taken into account when liquidity risk is measured.
When investing assets in various financial instruments the Bank shall consider carefully the maturity of the source
of funds and its volume;

- The major transactions being made shall be checked preliminarily for conformity with the current liquidity
situation and the established limits;

- Planning of liquidity needs shall be carried out.

The following factors may contribute to growth of liquidity risk:

- Loss of confidence in the banking system in general and/or in the Bank in particular;

- Dependent position in terms of sourcing deposits from one market or a small number of partners;

- Excessive short-term borrowing or long-term lending,

The Bank’s liquidity needs may be considered with regard to demand and supply. The following are the
sources of liquidity supply:

- Deposit sourcing, receipt of monetary funds to the clients’ accounts;

- Repayment of previously raised loans by the borrowers;

- Sale of assets;

- Raising of funds on the money market;

- Income received.

The sources of demand for liquidity are as follows:

- Withdrawal of money from the clients’ deposits (current accounts);

- Requests for loans obtaining;

- Payment of bank expenses;

- Payment of dividends to shareholders.

The ratio between demand and supply sources shall determine the net liquidity position (excess or lack of
liquidity) at any specific time. This position shall be calculated daily to allow planning of future needs or possible
release of funds.

The Bank shall establish the following requirements to organization of asset and liability management in
terms of liquidity management:

- Liquidity management shall be carried out by subdivisions and employees d éé!icated to such activities;

- Liquidity management is carried out daily and in an ongoing way; | 3
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- Liquidity management shall be carried out based on analysis of cash flows in view of actual term of asset
disposal, term of claiming and maturity dates established for liabilities;

- Information on upcoming crediting or withdrawal of monetary funds from structural subdivisions shall be
transferred immediately;

- Planning of liquidity needs shall be carried out;

- The measures for resource restructuring shall be developed and taken in case of lack of liquidity;

- The measures to restore liquidity shall be developed and taken in case of extraordinary events;

- Stress testing shall be carried out.

The main components of liquidity risk to be regulated are immediate liquidity, current liquidity and long-term
liquidity.

4. The concentration risk is a risk arising due to the Bank’s exposure to major risks, the occurrence of which
may lead to material losses that may threaten the credit institution’s solvency and its ability to continue its
operation.

To identify and measure the concentration risk the Bank shall establish the system of indicators helping to
identify concentration risk in respect to significant risks, certain major counterparties (groups of related
counterparties) of the Bank and persons {groups of persons) related to the Bank, economy sectors, geographical
areas, etc. According to this system of indicators the risk management service shail prepare proposals at ieast once
a year concerning alert levels and maximum values (limits) viclation of which shall be prohibited.

5. The operating risk is a risk of losses caused by unreliability and defects of the Bank’s internal management
procedures, failure of information system and other systems or impact of external events on the Bank’s operation.
The legal risk shall be a part of the operating risk.

Operating risks are detected through analysis of all operation conditions of Bank ICBC {JSC) for available or
possible operating risks factors; it is performed at several levels:

- Analysis of general changes in the financial environment {e.g. implementation of new technologies or
financial innovations) that can influence performance of Bank ICBC (iSC);

- Analysis of exposure of certain fields of the Bank’s activity to operating risks in view of its priorities (preparing
a “risk profile”);

- Analysis of changes (increase or reduction) in the number and amounts of the monetary funds paid by the
Bank based on rulings (decisions) of courts, decisions of bodies authorized in compliance with the legislation of the
Russian Federation as wel| as the ratio between the number of lawsuits and amounts under the lawsuits paid by the
Bank and in favour of the Bank;

- Analysis of cases when enforcement actions have been taken in respect of the Bank by regulatory and
supervisory bodies, the dynamics of use of the stated enforcement actions;

- Analysis of internal procedures, including the system of reporting and sharing information.

In the course of operating risk identification special attention shall be paid to overlapping of powers and
responsibility of the Bank’s subdivisions, employees.

Monitoring of operating risks helps to create a database of events (circumstances) entailing:

- Direct losses or increase in costs;

- Damage to business reputation;

- Loss of control over the activities;

As well as further analysis of each occurrence of the events (circumstances) including identification of their
nature and description of causes that have ted to realization of operating risk in a specific situation. The database
of operating losses is created and maintained by the risk management service.

6. The reputational risk is a risk of financial losses caused by decrease in the number of customers due to
forming of a negative public perception of the Bank’s financial stability, quality of its services and/or nature of its
activities in general. .

The Bank’s business reputation components are as follows:

- Confidence in the Bank;

- Reputation of the Bank’s top officials;

- Social attitude;

- Quality of services;

- The personnel’s attitude to customers;

- Advertising policy; .

)
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- Geographic reach of the Bank {operation of regional branches, proximity and accessibility of offices).

Reputation risk is managed in the Bank through the following measures:

- The Bank has a clear vision of its future and its market position (in accordance with the development
strategy);

- The Bank has developed the procedures for official, consistent and timely consideration of the customers’
complaints and applies these procedures;

- The Bank has developed the customer service standards and regulations; all employees observe the
professional ethics regulations;

- The Bank has arranged the system for management of the major banking risks including ongoing monitoring
of the customer operations to prevent and counteract money laundering according to Federal Law No. 115-®3 “On
counteracting money laundering and financial support of terrorism”;

- The Bank ensures transparency of its information: it has its regularly updated website and uses other
opportunities provided by the mass media.

Minimization of operating risk implies using a set of measures aimed at reducing the probability of events or
circumstances leading to operating losses and/or at decreasing (restricting) potential operating loss amounts.

The main method to minimize the operating risk controlled at the level of the Bank in general is to develop
the organizational structure, internal rules and procedures for banking operations and other transactions in such a
way that occurrence of operating risk factors is avoided (minimized). In this regard special attention shall be paid to
observance of the separation of powers principle, compliance with the procedure for approval (agreement) and
accountability in respect of the banking operations and other transactions.

Development of systems for banking technology automation and data protection also helps to achieve
considerable reduction of operating risk.

Decrease in the level of certain types of operating risk is achieved by transfer of the risk or a part thereof to
third parties. The decision on use of the risk transfer mechanism (for instance, by outsourcing) shall be taken
according to the results of thorough analysis and in view of the expected effect, cost and possible transformation
of one type of the risk into another. In this regard the Bank still has the chance to monitor the exposure to the
transferred operating risk along with monitoring of the remaining risk level.

Financial implications of operating risk may also be mitigated through insurance. Insurance may be used in
particular in respect of specific banking risks both on a comprehensive basis (a comprehensive banking insurance
certificate) and with regard to certain types of risks {for instance, insurance against risks related to issue and usage
of payment cards, insurance of the employees’ professional liability, insurance against damage caused by computer
information crimes). Reasonability of insurance is assessed by the Bank in view of the cost of insurance and the
probability of occurrence and effect of the insured event on its financial condition.

To limit operating risk, the Bank provides for a comprehensive system of measures to ensure continuous
financial and operational activities in the course of banking operations and other transactions, including action plans
for unforeseen circumstances (plans ensuring continuity and/or restoration of financial and operational activities).

7. The country risk is a risk of the Bank’s losses resulting from impact of the following factors:

- Failure of foreign counterparties (legal entities or individuals) to perform the obligations due to economic
changes on the market;

- Failure of foreign counterparties (legal entities or individuals) to perform the obligations due to political
changes on the market;

- Failure of foreign counterparties (legal entities or individuals) to perform the obligations due to social and
legal changes on the market;

- Failure of foreign counterparties (legal entities and individuals) to perform their obligations due to non-
availability of the currency of a pecuniary liability resulting from special aspects of national legislation;

- Violation of rules, procedures, tariffs by the Bank’s customers and counterparties for reasons stated above;

- Location of the Bank’s subdivisions, subsidiaries and affiliates, customers and counterparties in jurisdictions
of different states having different legislation.

- The Bank’s inability to bring its internal documents and rules into compliance with changes in the conditions

and conditions of banking operations and transactions, financial innovation and te
markets {in terms of services, currencies and territories (countries)).
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To identify and assess the signs of country risk the Bank applies ratings assigned by Moody's (Moody's
Investors Service), S&P (Standard and Poor’s Financial Services LLC) and Fitch (Fitch Ratings Inc.}; changes in these
ratings in each case mean changes in the country risk levei.

For the purpose of limiting the country risk’s influence on Bank ICBC (JSC), the country limits are established
which are confirmed by the head bank of ICBC group specifically for each country, with the residents of which Bank
{CBC {ISC) is going to cooperate.

8. The strategic risk is a risk of unfavourable changes in the activity results of Bank ICBC {JSC} due to erroneous
decisions made in the course of the Bank’s management, including during preparation, approval and
implementation of the Bank ICBC (JSC} development strategy, inappropriate performance of the decisions made, as
well as inability of the Bank’s management bodies to take into account changes in external factors.

When developing the strategic risk management procedures, Bank ICBC {ISC) shall take into account the
following sources of such risk:

- Mistakes made when adopting the decisions determining the activity and development strategy of Bank
ICBC {iSC), unsatisfactory strategic management of the Bank, including lack of consideration of possible hazards that
can threaten the Bank’s activity,

- Wrong determination of promising activity directions, in which Bank ICBC (JSC) can achieve a competitive
advantage;

- Full or partial absence of the appropriate management decisions that can ensure achievement of the Bank
{ICBC {ISC) strategic goals;

- Full or partial absence of necessary resources, including financial, material and equipment to achieve the
Bank ICBC {JSC) strategic goals.

To assess the strategic risk level, the system of threshold values {established limits) shall be determined

according to the set of indicators used by Bank ICBC {(JSC) pursuant to the developed internal documentation.

9.3. Information on types and degree of concentration risks associated with various banking operations
with a breakdown by geographical area, currency, borrower type and types of their business, markets, as well os
description of concentration risk ussessment methods.

The Bank’s policy and procedures include specific principles aimed at maintenance of diversified portfolios
and concentration risk management. in the third quarter, the Board of Directors of Bank ICBC (JSC) adopted
(minutes No. 07-17 dated September 22, 2017} the new regulation “On procedure for concentration risk
management” that controls concentration risk, determines the system of indicators that allow to reveal
concentration risk in relation to significant risks, certain major counterparties {group of related counterparties) of
Bank ICBC (JSC) and persons {groups of persons) related to Bank ICBC (ISC), economy sectors, geographical areas,
etc.

During the reporting period of 2017 the Bank used the following methods to manage risk of excessive business
concentration:

Daily monitoring and control of operations, subject to observance of the mandatory ratios established by the
Central Bank of Russia to restrict excessive concentration risk (H6, H7, H25 and other);

Calculation of concentration ratios in accordance with the internal methodology;

Monitoring of macroeconomic indicators in Russia {including industry-specific and regional indicators);

Analysis of segmentation of the Bank's assets and liabilities in accordance with the established segmentation
criteria;

Diversification analysis of deposit portfolio, credit and interbank lending portfolios, including dependence of
such portfolios on key clients and customers.

Concentration of risks by geographical area
Concentration risk by regions of the Bank’s presence shall be understood a possibility (probabmty) of losses

occurring as a result of unfavourable economic changes in the region where the Baj
operates.
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In the reporting period regional concentration risk management included identification and analysis of
research data and analytical information related to the risks of the regions where the Bank's large counterparties
and issuers of debt securities were present.

The table below presents information about concentration risk level of the Bank’s assets and liabilities by
geographical areas, according to the data included in the reporting form No. 0409806 “the Balance Sheet Statement
(a public disclosure form)”. The information is given separately for the Russian Federation, for the OECD countries,
for the CIS and other countries. A separate disclosure is made for the People’s Republic of China.

Volume of assets and liabilities as of January 01, 2018,

Volume of assets and liabilitles as of January 01, 2017,

ths rubles ths rubles
Types of assets and liabilities
Russian fed- OECD Othe.r China Russtar.; Fed- OECD Other. coun- China
eration countries eration tries
Cash 30,275 - - 99,124 - " -
Cash of credit institutions with
the Central Bank of Russia, to- 3,927,345 - - 3,393,383 - - -
tal
_ including: 348,760 - . 425,045 . . .
Required reserves
:‘;::5 due from credit institu- 40,530 187,084 1,754 2,066,108 32,722 | 4,969,375 1,269,503 494,533
Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss ) } ) ) ) ) ) 4,294
Net loans receivable 30,763,586 1,552,929 1,161,969 3,372,471 26,515,851 3,415,689 436,063 7,515,971
Net investments in securities 4,001,978 . - 1,094,565 630,638 ; ; 1,088,401
held to maturity
Current income tax ¢laims 31,341 - - - 39,678 - -
leecll assets, 'mtangmle assets 105,377 ) ) } 58,859 : } }
and inventories
Other assets 163,204 4,181 3,801 8,167 89,870 882 3,777 54,162
tal t:
Total assets 30,063,636 | 1,744,194 | 1,167,524 6,542,311 | 30,864,125 | 8,385,896 1,709,343 9,157,361
Funds due to credit institutions 3,682,976 1,155,100 1,920,262 6,006,682 4,441,029 1,239,159 1,871,945 11,984,112
Funds due to customers other 20,482,844 . 33,458 893,821 | 23,524,885 7 121,406 839,980
than credit institutions
lnc!'ue‘mg deposits (funds) ‘of in- ) ) } 100 4,196 ) )
dividuals and sole proprietors
Financial liabilities with fair ) B ) ) i 1,305
value through profit or loss ' ) )
Current income tax liabilities 5,170 - - 26,616 - - -
Deferred tax Hability - - - - “ - - -
Other liabilities 255,670 7,748 224,862 14,887 90,579 - 151,117 20,167
Provisions far possible losses
on credit-related contingencies
and other possible losses an 10,000 9,568 - “ 717 - - -
operations with offshore zone
residents
Total liabilities 24,436,660 1,172,416 2,178,582 6,915,390 28,083,826 1,240,471
X




Concentration of risks by currency

In the reporting period concentration of risk by currency was managed by means of diversification of the
Bank’s portfolios by keeping open positions in various currencies and risk reduction achieved by maintenance of
open positions of minimum size.

Bank ICBC (JSC) performs operations in five currencies (US dollars, euro, Chinese yuans, Singapore dollars
and Hong Kong dollars). The major scope of operations is performed by the Bank in the following currencies: US
dollars and Chinese yuans. The scope of operations in other currencies is insignificant.

Credit risk

Credit risk shall mean a risk of losses which may be incurred by the Bank due to a debtor’s failure to perform
or any delay in performance or improper performance of its financial liabilities to the Bank as provided for by terms
and conditions of any relevant agreement. The Bank's risk management system provides for the following:

Diversification of the Bank’s loans and advances and investment portfolio;

Preliminary assessment of a borrower’s creditworthiness {i.e. the Bank validates the borrower’s credit history
and examines its reputation. Besides, the borrower’s business is analysed and its abiiity to repay the debt is assessed
{including analysis of the loan collateral and other related factors) preliminary classification of loans and any similar
indebtedness in accordance with the regulatory documents of the Central Bank of Russia;

Determination of authority limits of the Bank's collective bodies and officers;

Specification of the maximum allowed level of credit risks;

Control over loans issued previously;

Determination of exposure limits and establishment of impairment provisions comparable in size with po-
tential losses which may be eventually incurred as a resuit of any respective transaction.

For credit risk measurement, assessment of financial condition of borrowers and calculation of the maximum
allowed credit risks assumed for each borrower {a group of borrowers) the Bank established a separate structural
subdivision, Department for analysis of credit limits and operations. To manage credit risk the Bank has established
the Credit Committee, which is responsible for consideration and approval of credit limits for borrowers and the
level of assumed credit risk. The Credit Committee meetings are held on a regular basis.

The methodological and practical approaches employed in the process of credit risk assessment are described
in more detail in the Bank’s internal documents governing asset-side banking operations carried out by the Bank.
Credit risks are measured by the Bank on all loans and their equivalents at the time when a particular transaction
is performed, and later on a reguiar basis,

The credit risks are mitigated by employing a strictly regulated approach when making lending transactions.
The credit risk management procedure shall include the following:

Application of lending standards and formalized procedures at the time of decision making regarding any
relevant loan issue or otherwise (i.e., assessment of collateral liquidity, evaluation of a borrower’s/ counterparty’s
financial standing, as well as of the risk level), executing respective documents and loan disbursement;

Continuous monitoring of the loan indebtedness;

Establishment of loan loss provisions as provided for by the regulations of the Central Bank of Russia;

Compliance with mandatory ratios required by the Central Bank of Russia, such as ratio (H6) of the maximum
risk exposure per borrower or a group of related borrowers; ratio (H7) of the maximum large credit exposure; ratio
(H9.1) of the maximum value of loans, guarantees or sureties issued by the bank to its shareholders; ratio (H10.1)
of the aggregate insider risk; ratio (H12) of the bank’s equity capital used for purchasing shares of other legal enti-
ties; and also ratio (H25) of the maximum risk size for related parties of the Bank.

The Bank’s system for monitoring of loans and their equivalents allows a timely identification of problem
assets and facilitates taking immediate measures aimed at credit risk mitigation.

The Bank regularly monitors credit risk. The Risk Committee members receive reports on credit risks at least
quarterly.

During the reporting period there were no changes in the Bank’s methodology of credit risk assessment.and

control,

Classification of assets by group of risk according to clause 2.3 of Instruction
dated June 28, 2017 No. 180-U4 “On Mandatory Ratios for Banks” i




As of January 01, 2018 As of January 01, 2017
lAssets exposed to risk and reported in the balance sheet accounts,
Total, including: 34,230,356 35,422,186
of which:
lAssets of the 1st risk group {with 0% risk ratio) 6,437,456 3,771,568
Provisions for assets of the 1st risk group - -
Credit risk for assets of the 1st risk group - -
Assets of the 2nd risk group (with 20% risk ratio) 9,827,920 15,233,326
Provisions for assets of the 2nd risk group - -
Credit risk for assets of the 2nd risk group 1,985,584 3,046,665
IAssets of the 3rd risk group (with 50% risk ratic) 4,901,470 8,441,661
Provisions for assets of the 3rd risk group - -
Credit risk for assets of the 3rd risk group 2,450,736 4,220,831
Assets of the 4th risk group (with 100% risk ratio) 12,963,510 7,975,630
Pravisions for assets of the 4th risk group {59,386} (59,058)
Credit risk for assets of the 4th risk group 12,904,124 7,916,572
Total credit risk for the assets reported in the balance sheet accounts 17,340,444 15,184,068
Credit risk on assets with decreased risk coefficient (claims of clearing participants) 2,008 199,731
IAssets with increased risk ratios (110%, 130%, 150%, 250%, 1000%) 14,285,443 12,733,839
Provisions for assets with increased risk ratios (110%, 130%,
150%, 250%, 1000%) (258,973} {194,118)
Credit risk for assets with increased risk ratios 14,805,348 12,013,508
Total c.red‘it risk for the ass?ts reported in the balance sheet accounts (including as- 32,147,800 27,397,307
sets with increased risk ratios)
Credit-related contingencies, total, of which: 10,443,433 7,736,639
Credit-related contingencies without risk 1,310,728 1,290,000
Credit-related contingencies with low risk - 70,000
Credit-related contingencies with medium risk 3,785,001 3,281,479
Credit-related contingencies with high risk 5,347,704 3,095,160
Provisions for credit-related contingencies (19,568) (717)
Credit risk for credit-related contingencies 7,493,539 4,990,970
Term transactions and derivative financial instruments - 22,951
Provisions for term transactions and derivative financial instruments - -
Credit risk on term transactions and derivative financlal instruments -

On volumes and maturities of overdue and restructured debts

Size of overdue debts is one of the indicators showing exposure of assets to ris|

29,836




An asset is deemed as overdue in full if payment term established by the agreement is violated at least in
respect to one payment of the principal debt and/or interest.

As of January 01, 2018, according to the data of reporting form No. 0409115, the overdue loan indebtedness
and assets amounted to 649,398 ths rubles and had the following parameters (the Statements shall specify the total
volume of assets with the maximum period of delay in overdue payments as of the moment of preparation of the

Statements):
Overdue indebtedness by dates
No, Composition of overdue assets Total overdue in- Potential loss reserve
debtedness From 91
Up to 30 From 31 Over 181
days to 90 days to 180 days
days
1 f:la;ms. to credit institutions, total, 649,627 649,398 0 0 279 13,217
including:
1.1 | Other claims in relation to banks 640,231 640,002 0 0 229 13,029
12 Cla'rms for lntgrgst s.ncolme under 9,396 9,396 0 0 0 188
¢laims to credit institutions
Claims to legal entities (except for
2 credit institutions), total, Inciud- 149 0 0 0 149 149
ing:
2,1 | Other claims 145 0 0 0 149 149
TOTAL: 649,776 649,398 0 0 378 13,366
Overdue indebtedness as of January 01, 2017 is shown in the table below:
Overdue indebtedness by dates
No. Composition of overdue assets TO?E overdue in- Potential loss reserve
ebtedness From 91
Up to 30 From 31 Over 181
days to 80 days to 180 days
days
1 .Clalms. to credit institutions, total, 242 240 0 0 2 122
including:
1.1 | Other claims in relation to banks 242 240 0 ¢ 2 122
Claims to legal entities (except for
2 credit institutions}, total, includ- 605 0 0 21 584 605
ing:
2.1 | Other claims 605 0 0 21 584 60%
TOTAL: 847 240 0 21 586 827

Information about percentage in the loan and overdue indebtedness in the total volume of assets is shown
in the table below:
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As of lanuary 01, 2018 | As of January 01, 2017
| oans classified as per subpar.3,14.3 of par.3.14 of Regulation No. 590- of the Cen-
tral Bank of Russia, total {according to the data of reporting form No. 0409115, line
4.1.2) 9,561,633 5,891,805
Percentage in the total volume of the assets evaluated for creation of a provislon (ac-
cording to the data of reporting form No. 0409115) 21.51% 12.60%
Loans classified as per subpar.3.12.3 of par.3.12 of Regulation No. 590-11 of the Cen-
tral Bank of Russia, total {according to the data of reporting form No. 0409115, line
4.13) 987,432 2,426,276
Percentage in the total volume of the assets evaluated for creation of a provision (ac-
cording to the data of reporting form No. 0409115) 2,22% 5.19%
Overdue indebtedness 649,776 -
Percentage of overdue indebtedness in the total volume of the assets evaluated for
creation of a provision (according to the data of reporting form No. 409115) 1.46% -

On results of assets classification by quality category and on target and actual provisions size for possible
losses
Classification of assets by quality category (according to the data of reporting form No. 0409115} is provided

Balance as of Jan- Targe.t provi- Actuai provision Bafance as of Janu- Target provision Actual provision
uary 01, 2018 sion ary 01, 2017

1 category 35,933,907 - - 39,896,775 - -

2 category 7,679,281 157,537 158,586 6,848,668 237,421 229,438

3 category 783,424 207,132 117,779 240 120 120

4 category . . - . . -

5 category 49,416 49,416 49,416 28,039 28,039 28,039
Total 44,446,028 414,085 325,781 46,773,722 265,580 257,597

below:

On the nature and value of collateral received
The type and value of collateral required by the Bank depends on evaluation of the counterparty’s credit risk.
The Bank has established principles to determine acceptable collateral types and their evaluation parameters.
Below is presented the list of collaterals received by the Bank:

The collateral received by the Bank is classified as the collateral of the 1st qual

R As of January 01, 2018 | As of January 01, 2017

ths rubles ths rubles

Surety {total): 356,904 4,941,381

including accepted for reduction of the target provision: - -

Guarantees (total): 3,710,516 3,629,257

including accepted for reduction of the target provision: 425,245 1,553,910

Security deposit (total}: 382,558 162,347

including accepted for reduction of the target provision: 382,558 ol o B34 b
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Security deposits accepted to decrease the provision are in compliance with clause 6.2.2 of Regulation of the
Bank of Russian No. 590-N dated June 28, 2017 “On the Procedure of Establishment by Institutional Lenders of
Provisions for Possible Losses on Loans and Loan Equivalents”.

The guarantor on the collateral received (guarantees) that was also accepted for reduction of the provision is
the parent bank ICBC Ltd. with the following long-term credit ratings: S&P at “A” and Moody’s at “A1”.

Information about the Bank’s encumbered and non-encumbered assets

As of January 01, 2018, The Bank has no encumbered assets,

No. Narrative Book value of encumbered assets Book value of unencumbered assets
Total Including under lia- Total Including those gualified
bilities ta the Bank of to be provided as a col-
Russia lateral to the Bank of
Russia
1 2 3 4 5 [
1 Total assets, - - 48,517,666 1,264,870
including:

Equity securities, total, - - - -
including:

2.1 Of credit institutions - - - -

59 Of legal entities not being credit - - - -

institutions
3 Debt securities, total, - - 4,849,984 1,264,870
including:
31 Of credit institutions, total, - - 1,087,522 -
' including:
311 With long-ferm credit ratings - - 1,087,522 -

3.1.2 | Without long-term credit ratings - - - -

Of legal entities not being credit - - - -
3.2 institutions, tatal,
including:

3.2,1 | With long-term credit ratings - . - -

3,22 | Without long-term credit ratings - - - .

4 Funds on correspendent accounts - - 5,284,515 -
with credit institutions

5 interbank credits {(deposits) - - 6,549,678 -

6 Loans to legal entities other than - - 10,802,771 -
credit institutions

7 Loans to individuals - - - -

8 Fixed assets - - 98,789

9 Other assets . - 226,933
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Counterparty risk

The counterparty risk is a risk of a counterparty’s default before settlements on the operations with the
derivative financial instruments, repurchase transactions and similar transactions are completed.

The counterparty risk is managed using the limit systems for specific counterparties and counterparty groups
depending on the operation types, risk level and operation urgency.

The Bank’s Shareholder determines the Jimits of the Treasury employees’ authority to perform operations on
the financial market. The procedure for establishing, changing and controlling the limits for transactions with the
credit institutions establishes the procedure for approving limits related to respective counterparties considering
current risk appetite of the Bank, and establishes the procedures that control the counterparty’s performance of
the obligations. Therefore, the effective systems of limits and authorities allow optimizing the credit process and
duly manage counterparty risk.

The operations with derivative financial instruments (hereinafter the “DFI”) that bear credit risk are
performed with the stock instruments and within the framework of separate counterparty agreements {out-of-stock
DF! transactions).

When calculating the amount of credit risk on the derivative financial instruments, a methodology described
in Appendix 3 of Instruction No.180-1 dated June 28, 2017 of the Bank of Russia “On Mandatory Ratios for Banks”
shall be used.

The Bank also assesses and identifies credit risk in relation to REPO transactions made on the out-of-stock
market.

Assessment, identification and calculation of the cost of assets {credit claims and claims in relation to the
accrued {accumulated) interest) that arose from the REPO agreements and defined as the financial agreements,
included in the netting agreements considering the collateral, are made according to clause 2.6.1 of Instruction
N0.180-Y dated june 28, 2017 of the Bank of Russia “On Mandatory Ratios for Bank”,

Credit risk for DFl that is exposed to the EAD {exposure at defauit) risk on the out-of-stock derivative
financial instruments includes current and potential credit risk.

Credit risk for DF is determined as the sum of current and potential risk. Current credit risk is determined as
the cost of the financial instrument replacement that reflects the amount of losses as of the reporting date in case
the counterparty fails to perform its obligations. Potential credit risk is determined as the risk of non-performance
of the counterparty’s obligations in the period from the reporting date to the value date due to unfavourable
change in the cost of the core asset.

The Bank does not have DF! transactions as of January 01, 2018.

Market risk

For market risk management and control the Bank has approved the Regulations “On Market Risk
Management” (approved by the resolution of the Board of Directors, minutes No. 12-16 dated December 28, 2016)
and other internal documents governing procedures for conducting transactions exposed to market risk {i.e. equity,
interest rate or foreign exchange risks). Besides, limits for market risk indicators and a limit for the aggregate level
of market risk have been assigned.

During the reporting period of 2017, the Risk Management Service was regularly controlling the market risk
in general and, in particular, its components.

As of January 01, 2018, the Bank did not have equity risk, commodity risk and interest rate risk of the business
book due to absence of assets in the bank’s balance sheet exposed to such risks.

For the purpose of controlling foreign currency risk, during the entire fourth quarter of 2017, the Bank was
controlling open currency items and analysed influence of this risk on the equity and financial result of Bank ICBC
(1SC). In accordance with the internal assessment model for the currency exchange risk, possible {osses (VAR) per 1
day as of January 01, 2018 constituted 14.16 min rubles, possible losses for 5 days constituted 31.65 min rubles, The
Bank regularly monitors market risk. The Board of Directors members receive reports on market rask at ieast
quarterly and the Risk Committee members receive such reports at least month%y ' ey




Interest rate risk of the Bank book

Far the purpose of controlling and managing the interest rate risk of the bank portfolio, the Regulation “On
procedure for managing the interest rate risk” was adopted in the Bank {approved by the decision of the Board of
Directors, Minutes No.12-16 dated December 28, 2016), according to which this risk is assessed daily.

As of January 01, 2018, the interest rate risk ratio calculated based on the Basel Committee
Recommendations {2004, 2016) using the GAP analysis method constituted 2.28 for the interval up to 1 year (see
the table below, the numeric values are given in rubles).

Financlal instruments } Up to 1month | Fram 1 ta 3 monthsi From 3 to 6 manths :r:z:::sm 2 From 1to 3 years] OQver3years
ssets

Funds due from credit institutions 10,711,485,7G9) 4,562,307,507] 2,962,934,204] 1,728,164,698 19,532,126 O
Loans and their equivalents ~ customers 8,165,177,597] 5,828,965,581 3,120,724,153] 0 0 0
investment securities held to maturity G 686,385,851 18,542,262 19,886,788 3,336,684,965 1,035,042,747,
[Total assets 18,880,663,307 11,077,658,519] €,102,200,619 1,748,051,487 3,356,217,091, 1,085,042,747)
[Tatal assets on a cumulative basis 18,880,663,307, 29,958,322,225; 36,060,522,844] 37,808,574,331 41,164,791,422 42,159,834,169
Liabilities

Funds due to credit ipstitutions 1,249,924,340) 120,960,420, 2,880,010,000; 0 1,768,994,000 0
Clients' funds 7,710,165,607] 2,2867,510,209 2,073,607,200 312,638,567, s 8]
Debentures issued [ o 0 0 O 0
Other borrowed funds O 04 0 % 0 0
[Total Hlabilities 8,560,0858,947 2,388,470,628 4,953,617,200 312,638,567 1,768,994,000 O
[Total liakitities on a cumulative basis 8,960,082,947 11,348,560,576 16,302,177,778 16,614,816,343; 18,383,810,343] 18,383,810,343!
iGap 9,920,573,360! 8,689,188,289 1,148,583,415 1,435,412,921 1,587,223,091 1,035,042,747
Gap on a cumulative basis 9,820,573,360 18,609,761,648 19,758,345,063 21,193,757,989] 22,780,981,080, 23,816,023,827
Gap coefficient 2.11] 2.64) 2.21 2,28 2.24 2.30

In accordance with the approved internal methodology, the reduction {(growth) in interest rates is considered
in this risk by the currency types according to the following table:

Scenario

CNY EU

RO HKD

RUB

5GD

usD

items)

Parallel shifts in interest rates (in basic

250

200 200

400

150

200

According to this scenario, possible change of economic {net) cost of Bank ICBC (JSC) {using the duration

method) was calculated by each currency {shown in the table below, in rubles):

Financial instruments l Upte 1 month  [From 1 to 3 months|From 3 to 6 months From 6to 22 Fom 1to 2years | From2ta 3 vearsw
months
Assets
Funds due from credit institutions 10,711,485,709 4,562,307,507 2,962,934,204 1,728,164,699 18,532,126 0
Lozns and their equivaients ~ customers 8,169,177,597 5,828,965,581 3,120,724,153 0 0 o)
Investment securities held to maturity G 686,385,831 18,542,262 19,886,788; 1,805,405,128 1,531,279,838
[Total assets 18,880,663,307, 11,077,658,919 6,102,200,619 1,748,051,487 1,824,937,253] 1,531,279,838!
[Total assets on a cumulative hasis 18,880,663,307 29,958,322,225[ 36,060,522,844! 37,808,574,331) 39,633,511,535{ 41,164,79}.,422%
Liabllities
Funds due to credit Institutions 1,2498,924,340 120,960,@[ 2,880,010,000] Q 1,768,994,000] 0
Clients' funds 7,710,165 607 2,267,510,209 2,073,607,200; 312,638,567, 0 0
Debentures ssued 0, 0; 0, ¥ [¢; 0
Other borrowed funds [& 0j 0] 0f o [¢
Total (labilities 8,960,089,947 2,388,470,629] 4,953,617,200, 312,638,567 1,768,954,000] O
[Total liabilities on a cumulative basis 8,960,089,947| 11,348,560,576 16,302,177,776} 16,614,816,343; 18,383,810,343 18,383,810,343
Gap 9,920,573,360, 8,689,188,289 1,148,583,419 1,435,412,921 55,943,253, 1,531,279,838]
Gap on a cumulative hasis 9,920,573,360; 18,609,761,649 19,758,345,068 21,193,757,988 21,249,701,242! 22,780,981,080)
Gap coefflcient 2,11 2,64 2.21] 2.28 2.18 2,24
ECapitaE mln rubles) ! 16,633;
Up to 1 month  |From 1 to 3 months|From 3 to 6 months From 6to 12 From 1to 2 years | From 2to 3 years
months
Modified duration 0.04 Q.15 0,34 0.68 1.28 2.03
Weighted open items {min rubles) 6.39 18.67, 542 12,64 7.85 62.17
Change in economic value of the Bank {min rubles) 22219
Financlat instruments From 3 to 4 years| From 4 to 5 years jFrom 5to 7 years| From 7 to 10 l From 10 to 15 From 15to 200 Over 20 years
years G lnyeRrs) i o Years) .

Assets
Funds due from credit institutions 0 0 0 o E 0
Loans and their equivatents ~ customers 0 0] 0 Ol 0f
Investment securities held to maturity 0 O 35,042,747 1,000,000,000; i O
Total assets 0 0 35,042,747|  1,000,000,000] o i )
ITotal assets on a cumulative basis 41,164,791,422]  41,164,791,422  41,199,834,169] 42,199,834,168 42, 99,834,169' 42,199,834,169  42,199,834,169|




Liabilitles

Funds due to credit institutions 0] 0 [ o b 0 o
Clients' funds 0 0f 0l 0 O [ 0
Debentures issued Q Of 0] Y 0 0 0
Other borrowed funds 0 [¢ ¢ 0] 0] 0 [
[Totat liabilities 0 0 0 0; 0; 0 &
Total liabilities on a cumulative basis 18,383,810,343]  18,383,810,343{ 1R,38B3,81(,343] 18,383,810,343; 18,383,810,343 18,383,810,343]  18,383,810,343
iGap 0 0t 35,042,747 1,000,000,000 O & O}
Gap on a cumulative basis 22,780,981,080] 22,780,981,080; 22,816,023,827 23,816,023,827] 23.816,023,827 23,816,023,827 23,816,023,827
{Gap coefficient 2.24] 2.24 2.24; 2.3 2.30; 2.30) 2.30]
{capital (mlp rubles)
From 7 to 10 from 1310 15 From 15 t¢ 20
From 3 to 4 years | From 4 to 5 years | From 5 to 7 years vears vears years Over 20 years

Modified duration 2,72 3.34 4.36 5,30 6,65 7.75 8.43
\Weighted open tems {min rubles} - - 3.06 106.0C - - -

Change in econamic value of the Bank [mln rubles)

Change in economic value of the Bank to Equity

1.34%

This calculation is based on the model recommended by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision. Based
on the estimated data, the interest rate risk absolute value of the Bank book as of January 01, 2018 amounts to
222.19 min rubles (1.34% of the Bank’s capital) that corresponds to the Basel Committee requirements and consists
of interest rate risk of the Bank book in US dollars in the amount of 6.07 min rubles, in rubles — 213.49 min rubles,
in Chinese yuan — 7.74 min rubles, and in euro — 10.37 min rubles. There were no interest-bearing assets and
interest-based liabilities in Hong Kong dollars and Singapare dollars on the balance sheet of the Bank as of the
reporting date.

To assess influence of interest rate risk of the Bank book on possible change of net interest income, ratios
were calculated using the GAP analysis according to the Recommendations of the Basel Committee on Banking

Supervision:

Up to 1 month From 1 to 3 months | From 3 to 6 months | Fram 6 to 12 months| TOTAL for the year
Time ratlo 0.95833 0.83333 0.62500 0.25000]
Range of Interest rate change 159,751 124.45 15.95! 18,59
RUR 113.14 7X91] 6.37] 8,94
UsD 2%92 4440 - 25,81, 10.74
EURO 4.82 0.06j 28.98] 0.10] 27142
ICNY 19.87 8.01; 6,41 - 313
HKD
SGD
Change of NH (min rubles) 153.05) 103,74 2,97 4.65
RUR 108.43} 59,93 3.98] 2,24 174.57
UsD 2X01} 37.05 16.13] 269 A44.61]
EURC 4.62 0,08 18,11 0.02 2281
CNY 19,04 6,68 4.01; - 0.30] 29.43;
HKD . - - -
SGD - - - -

influence of interest rate of the Bank book on possible change of the net interest income constitutes 271.42
min rubles and is mainly formed by the interest risk on rubles (174.57 min rubles). There were no interest-bearing
assets and interest-based liabilities in Hong Kong dollars and Singapore dollars on the balance sheet of the Bank as
of the reporting date.

Bank ICBC (JSC) employs the following principal methods to manage interest rate risk of the bank portfolio:

e Assets and liabilities matching in terms of maturity;

¢ Interest rate monitoring, thus allowing the Bank to promptly adjust interest rates applicable to the raised
/ placed funds;

e Establishment of the limits in respect of this risk and their daily control;

e Daily assessment of interest rate risk of the bank portfolio by the Risk Management Service.

The Bank regularly monitors the interest rate risk of the bank portfolio. The Board of Directors members
receive reports on market risk at least quarterly and the Risk Committee members receive such reports at least
monthly.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk arises as a result of unbalanced financial assets and liabilities of the Bank {including due to any
delay in performance of financial liabilities by one or several counterparties of the éénk)), and/or anuni
need for immediate and one-off discharge by the Bank of its financial liabilities. o ‘




Liquidity risk management comprises a set of measures to control- the Bank’s observance of the mandatory
ratios H2, H3, H4 and their dynamics; observation of structural fluctuations of assets and liahilities, identification of
maturity gaps of assets and liabilities with calculation of the respective indicators of liquidity (GAP analysis); and
measures on forecasting the Bank’s cash flows (daily preparation of the payment calendar). Also the Bank regularly
{once in half a year) conducts stress-tests of liquidity risk according to the scenarios developed by the Bank.

Liquidity is an essential factor of solvency. Liquidity risk is monitored on a daily basis by preparation of current
and forward-looking reports on maturity gaps of assets and liabilities.

For an unexpected scenario, namely in case of a liquidity crisis, an action plan to restore liquidity has been
designed in the Bank. The liquidity crisis plan lists events that can provoke the Bank’s loss of liquidity, nominates
collective bodies of the Bank in charge of implementation of measures on liquidity crisis elimination, such as the
Risk Committee, the Management Board and/or the Asset and Liability Management Committee. The plan also
prescribes measures on assets and liabilities management to resolve liquidity crisis, which is the basis of definition
of duties and actions of the respective employees and subdivisions of the Bank.

The plan also comprises description of external and internal factors of liquidity crisis, a pattern of
events occurrence of which characterizes liquidity crisis, and description of methods for recovery from liquid-
ity crisis, with a set of measures assigned to the responsible subdivisions of the Bank and a nominated Man-
agement Board coordinator for each of such measures.

As of the last day of Q4 2017 the Bank had a considerable stock of liquid assets. The Bank’s asset and liability
structure as well as a net liquid position of the Bank were kept on a high level throughout the reporting period and
there were no violations of the threshold liquidity deficit limits. The asset and liability structure of the Bank is
presented in the table below in rubles.

On den;a‘;l:;and ™M From2to? days | From 8to30days | From 31 to 80 days | From 91 to 180 days From i:i:o 3as Over 365 days
Cash register 30,275,498, “
ICorrespondent accounts 5,871,831,279 k g - E
Stock balance 10,051,366 - b - E . B
iC E - 10,711,485,709, 3,908,520,621 3,090,934,648, 2,018,611 865 125,870,957
Loahs ~ 166,400,577, 674,838,565 697,743,315 1,028,161,238; 14,551,723,636
Securlties B 686,385,831, 18,542,262 19,886,788 4,371,727,712
Accounts receivable B - - - E - 60,242,033
(TOTAL ASSETS 5,912,158,143| -] 10,877,886,287 5,269,745,017] 3,807,220,225 3,067,659,891 19,109,564,339
[Tota) accumuiated assets 5,912,158,143 5,912,158,143; 16,790,044,430] 22,058,789,447, 25,867,009,677) 28,934,669,563! 48,044,233,902
VOSTRO accounts 4,218,895,778 - - - E E ]
Liabilities on operations on formal se-
curities market {FSM) “ -t g
IC - 87,920,340, 120,960,420, 5,801,008,000
Settlement accounts 2,737,379,649 - - - B E
Deposits 2,950,181,224; - 5,198,79G,488] 2,267,510,209 2,073,607,200] 312,638,567, -
Accounts payable 1,344,515,844! - - g - -
[TOTAL LIABILITIES 11,250,872,495 - S,296,710,828! 2,388,470,629 2,073,607,200 312,638,567, 5,801,008,000]
[Total accumulated liabilities 11,250,972,485) 11,250,972,495 16,547,683,323} 18,936,153,952 21,009,761,152] 21,322,399, 719 27,123,407,719]
Net gap -5,338,814,357 O 5,581,175,459; 2,881,274,387, 1,733,613,025 2,755,021,324 13,308,556,339
Cumitiative gap «5,338,814,352 - §,338,814,352 242,361,107! 3,123,635,495 4,857,248,520 7,612,269,844 20,920,826,183
[Total accumulated liabilities 11,250,972,495 11,250,972,495 16,547,683,323? 18,936,153,852 21,009,761,152] 21,322,399,719 27,123,407,719
Cumilative GAP ratic -47% -47% 1% ! 16% 23% 36% 1%

The cumulative structure of the Bank’s balance sheet by currencies according to the remaining maturities
as at the end of Q4 2017 is characterized by balanced foreign currency assets and foreign currency liabilities, with
the maximum cumuiative liquidity surplus is seen in rubles.

For the purpose of improving quality of the liquidity risk analysis and for more reasonable planning of the
Banl(’s activity, the Risk Management Service also calculates stable balance in settlement accounts and vostro ac-
counts and deduct them from total “on demand” liabilities.

Assets and liabilities gap for all currencies constitutes 20.92 bin rubles. The maximum cumulative liguidity

surplus exists in rubles due to funds placed in IC, securities and correspondent accounts,

On demand and on 1 day  On demand upto 7

Ondemand upto30 Ondemand upto 90 On demand up to 180 On demand and up to

On demand over 1

days days days days 1year year

RUR (810} -4,915 -1,915 5,850 8,018 8,411 9,008 13,937
USD {840) ~1,049 -1,048 - 4,905 - 4,839 - 4,606 -2,823 3,956
EURQ (978) - 1,415 -1,415 -1,347 -+ 1,341 - 747 - 276 2,001
CNY (156) -968 -968 637 1,278 1,791 1,695 ; 21,019
HKD (344} 5 s 5 5 :;

SGD {702) 3 3 3 3 »

TOTAL - 5,339 - 5,339 202 3,124 4,857 |

For stress testing of liquidity risk, three scenarios are considered:




1. Crisis scenario in Bank ICBC (ISC}: Due to huge credit losses, rumours and/or scandals Bank 1CBC (I5C)
loses the counterparties’ trust whose funds are the sources of funds for active operations, and as a result the Bank
faces a serious insolvency problem. The following assumptions are made under the scenario:

- Crisis in Bank ICBC (ISC} is characterized by acute and strong shocks for a short period of time that are
accompanied by the longstanding and significant funds outfiows,

- It is assumed that such loss of the counterparties’ trust will lead to sudden and significant funds outflow
from the accounts of corporate, individual and institutional clients of Bank ICBC (ISC) during the short period of
time. Issue of its own securities (promissory notes and deposit certificates) and unsecured funding are possible,
however, the cost of funds attraction will grow due to the growth of the risk profile indicators of Bank {CBC {i5C),
due to which the total scope of funding will reduce.

2. General market crisis scenario: an intensive and acute shortage of funding on the market during short
period of time that prevents issue of new debt obligations and restricts access to unsecured interbank credit financ-
ing. Reduction of timeframes and scope of funding initially occurs due to closure of the long-term capital markets,
and then short-term capital markets. The following assumptions are made under the scenario:

- Liquidity crises occur as a result of a sudden deficiency in funding sources leading to increase in the funding
cost (i.e. influencing income), The counterparties are more sensitive to the bank’s reputation and rumours on the
financial market. The first stage of the liquidity crisis is characterized by the growth of the funding cost {dug to
spreads and increased requirements to security).

- At the second stage of the liquidity crisis, the market funding sources start closing for both individual banks
and the whole bank system.

- At the third stage of the liquidity crisis, mass withdrawal of the population’s funds occurs, the large-scale
crisis spreads to the entire bank sector. Large corporate and retail clients (irrespective of the deposit insurance
system} start withdrawing deposits allocated in Bank ICBC (ISC).

3. Combined scenario with the following assumptions:

- The combined scenario is based on the assumption of serious slowdown in the Chinese economy. The
decrease in growth of gross domestic product is reflected in the reduction of demand from export markets, thereby,
influencing the operations of trade financing and provision of bank guarantees. The problem in the real estate sector
substantially influences the growth of problem assets {increase in NPL) for the Chinese state banks, such as ICBC
group, it limits possibilities of the head bank of ICBC group to support subsidiary banks, including Bank ICBC (ISC);

- As a result of this stress scenario, Bank ICBC {JSC) considers combination of liquidity risk of the entire
market and liquidity risk specific for Bank ICBC (JSC) taking into account possible global economy collapse in general
(global financial crisis) and economy of China in particular {reginal financial crisis);

- Combination of scenarios is characterized by the sharp severe crisis of liquidity of Bank ICBC (JSC) along
with the crisis on the whole market.

Stress test results are regularly submitted to the Risk Committee members of the Bank for decision-making
purposes regarding reallocation of assets/liabilities and/or their reduction/increase (also by the Bank’s balance
sheet groups) as well as to the Board of Directors. Based on the stress test result the Bank can decide about launch-
ing the liquidity restoration plan in case of extraordinary events.

The Bank’s management bodies and structural units participate in liquidity risk management in the following
way: '
Authority of the Board of Directors

¢ Ensures establishment of an organization structure of the Bank that would meet the main principles of
banking risk management;

e Exercises control over completeness and regularity of checks performed by the Internal Audit Service
regarding the Bank’s compliance with the main risk management principles;

s Evaluates risk management efficiency;
Controls activity of the Bank’s executive bodies in risk management.

Authority of the Management Board

e Ensures general liquidity management in the Bank;

e Approves the maximum allowed liquidity deficit limits;

e Considers and reviews internal documents and amendments of the Bank wnfh rega
(regulations, procedures, rules, methodologies, tariff documents,
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documents that shall be approved by the Bank’s shareholder and/or the Board of Directors, as set out in
the Bank’s Articles of Association.

e Approves a set of measures and actions required in rase of a prolonged liquidity crisis, including action
plans under unforeseen circumstances {plans of continued operation and/or restoration of the Bank’s
business and financial performance);

e Exercises control over completeness and regularity of reporting by the Internal Audit Service regarding
level of the main banking risks.

Authority of the Bank’s President (of the Chairman of the Management Board}

s Controls the current status of liquidity and its current management;

s Coordinates the Bank’s subdivisions on the issues regarding asset/liability management based on the
analysis of the Bank’s gap of liquidity position;

e Coordinates the Bank’s subdivisions on the issues regarding asset/liability management based on cash
flow forecasting;

e Initiates proposals regarding changes in liquidity assessment indicators;

e Encourages and stimulates the Bank’s employees hased on their input in liquidity management, as well as
performs disciplinary actions in respect of employees, if needed.

Authority of the Internal Audit Service of the Bank

e Determines compliance of the actions and operations performed by the Bank’s management and
employees with the requirements of the effective legislation, regulatory acts, and Bank’s internal
documents that define the Bank’s policy. The procedures for adopting and implementing the decisions,
organizing accounting and reporting, including internal information about adopted decisions, operations
(transactions) made, results of financiai state analysis and bank activity risks;

e Exercises control over compliance with procedures regarding liquidity management;

o Participates in drafting internal documentation of the Bank to the end of checking its complance with
current legislation and regulatory requirements of the Central Bank of Russia.

Authority of the Asset and Liability Committee of the Bank

e Decides about changes in maturity structure of assets and liabilities;

e Identifies sources and limits to attract funds subject to particular maturity;

e Defines liguidity crisis indicators;

¢ Develops and submits for the Management Board approval measures to overcome liquidity crisis, controls
implementation of such measures;

e Determines the moment when the liquidity crisis ceased to exist and when the Bank can return to its
normal functioning regime;

e Coordinates actions of the Bank’s subdivisions regarding development of internal documents and their
amendments on the issues of liquidity management {regulations, procedures, rules, methodologies, tariff
documents, etc.).

Authority of the Bank’s Treasury

s Controls the set limits;

e Controls observance of the set liquidity ratios;

e Concludes transactions to regulate the Bank’s liquidity;
Weekly informs the Bank’s Risk Management Service about planned disbursements/receipts of cash;
Drafts recommendations upon maturity of asset-side transactions;

Plans sale of liquid assets;

Redrafting liabilities maturities for the periods where liquidity ratios are observed;

Drafts recommendations when concluding liakility-side transactions;
Maintains appropriate level of securities free from any pledge;

Initiates limit changes (decrease, increase, fixing and closure);

Initiates increase/decrease of interest rates;

e Sets priority for execution of payments depending on their respective im
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AUTHORITY of the Bank’s Risk Management Service

Collects and analyses information on liquidity in the Bank;

Analyses instant, current and long-term liquidity;

Analyses liquidity by applying the Bank’s negative scenario;

Controls over observance of the set maximum levels of liquidity surplus {deficit} ratio;

Regularly compiles reports on liquidity risks and submits them the management bodies of the Bank;
Initiates proposals regarding changes in liquidity assessment indicators;

Drafts recommendations regarding restoration of liquidity.

Authority of the Bank’s Department for accounting and reporting

Daily informs the Bank’s Treasury on planned disbursements/receipts of cash;

Drafts recommendations on lower purchases of fixed assets, reduction of capital investments and other

non-pperating expenses;

Plans sales of assets;

Prepares and submits to the Central Bank of Russia of the monthly reporting form No. 0409125
“Information on assets and labilities by maturity”;

The Back-office Unit daily submits credit portfolio data to the Department of financial reporting, Treasury

and Risk Management Service of the Bank;

Controls over observance of mandatory liquidity ratios within its competency and authority.

Authority of the Bank’s Department for corporate business

Controls compliance with the set limits on loans and transactions by their maturity;

Structures transactions subject to liquidity regulation requirements of the Bank and in line with the Bank’s
President directions;

Daily informs the Bank’s Treasury of planned loan repayments and disbursements/ receipts of cash under
loan agreements and other transactions;

Daily submits the data on the Bank’s credit portfolio to the Department of financial reporting, the Treasury
and Risk Management Service of the Bank;

Controls observance of mandatory ratio H6 on loans and other transactions in the Department’s/Division’s
competency;

Takes measures regarding early loan repayments within the subdivision’s competency;

initiates proposals regarding loan maturities for new loans;

Initiates changes of interest rates and tariffs on loans and other transactions;

Defines a list of customers for which lending should be ongoing/otherwise should be stopped.

Authority of the Bank’s Department for international business

Controls compliance with the set limits on loans and transactions by their maturity;

Structures transactions subject to liquidity regulation requirements of the Bank and in line with the Bank’s
President directions;

Daily informs the Bank’s Treasury of planned loan repayments and disbursements/ receipts of cash under
loan agreements and other transactions;

Controls observance of mandatory ratio H6 on loans and other transactions in the Department’s/Division’s
competency;

Takes measures regarding early loan repayments within the subdivision’s competency;

Initiates proposals regarding loan maturities for new loans;

Initiates changes of interest rates and tariffs on loans and other transactions;

Defines a list of customers for which lending should be ongoing/otherwise should be stopped.

Authority of the Bank’s Operation Department

Daily informs the Bank’s Treasury of planned cash disbursements/ rec fpts from/o custcngers account
Suggests and evaluates opportunities for introduction of new customers accoqnt
the Bank to stimulate keeping higher account balances with the Bank;




e Daily informs the Bank’s Treasury of planned return of customers deposits and planned payments under
deposit agreements and other transactions;
e |Initiates changes of banking tariffs.

Control over compliance with policies and procedures on liquidity management is a risk management in-
strument based underpinned by the following principies: comprehensive internal control, broad coverage of all or-
ganizational subdivisions of the Bank by control procedures and a multi-level type of internal control. Control is
executed at the following levels:

Level 1 (the lowest}. Heads of the Bank's structural subdivisions:

= Monitoring of quantity indicators of set limits and liquidity ratios;

e Consistent control over employees of the structural subdivisions as to their fulfiiment of respective
procedures prescribed by banking standards and having an impact on liquidity;

e Control over implementation of measures preventing use of the Bank's infrastructure for money
faundering and financial support of terrorism.

Level 2 (the medium level), Risk Management Service

s Monitoring and analysis of liquidity situation;

e Control over observance of liquidity ratios;

s Control over implementation of measures aimed at crisis situations in case of a short-term pressure of
excessive risks on the Bank;

o Informing the Management Board and Internal Audit about a long-term deterioration of one or several
liquidity parameters;

s Control over appropriate authority levels for decision making under normal functioning regime and in case
of crisis events.

Level 3 (the highest). The Bank's Management Board:

¢ Non-acceptability of a long-term deterioration of one or several liquidity parameters;

e Control over comparability of status and size of certain business profitability risks of the Bank;

¢ Preventing use of the Bank’s infrastructure for money'laundering and financial support of terrorism;

e Preventing a long-term pressure of excessive risks on a particular business activity area of the Bank;

s Non-acceptance of a long-term disbalance of assets and liabilities of the Bank;

e Control over adequacy of banking risks (financial risks) management with regard to current circumstances
and the Bank’s development strategy;

e Winding-up (or significant downsizing of activity and functions) of banking subdivisions with inherent
excessive banking risks.

Level 4 (extraordinary}, Board of Directors of the Bank

e Unacceptability of a simultaneous long-term negative pressure of several excessive risks on the Bank as a
whole;

e Unacceptability of disproportionate increase {simuitaneous) of risk size and higher return of the respective
business activity of the Bank;

» General control over risk management system of the Bank.

Decisions made at one of the control levels of the risk management system {within its scope of authority) are
obligatory for all lower control levels.

internal Audit of the Bank performs periodic checks of the control system and organization of functioning of
certain business activity areas of the Bank,

The Bank regularly monitors liquidity risk. The Board of Directors members receive reports on laquldaty rnsk at
feast quarterly and the Risk Committee members receive such reports at {east mohthly




Operating risk

Operating risk shall mean a risk of losses which may arise due to incompliance with the nature and scope of
activity of a credit institution and {or) requirements of applicable legisiation, internal rules and procedures regulat-
ing bank operations and other transactions, violation thereof by personnel of the credit institution and (or) by any
other persons whatsoever (as a result of either intentional or unintentional actions or omissions), inadequacy {(or
insufficiency) of functional capabilities (or characteristics) of the information, engineering or of any other systems
employed by the credit institution and (or} any failure {or malfunction) thereof or any other external event whatso-
ever.

Information on the operating risk size as of January 01, 2018 is presented below:

2014 2015 2016
Net interest income 635,986 1,052,552 2,200,652
Net non-interest income 235,879 1,224,957 263,590
Income 871,865 2,277,509 2,464,242
Operating risk 280,681

Information on the operating risk size as of January 01, 2017 is presented below:

2013 2014 2015
Net interest income 371,966 635,986 1,052,552
Net non-interest income 106,988 235,879 1,224,957
Income 478,954 871,865 2,277,509
Operating risk 181,416

The Bank exercises control over operating risks using its operating risk accounting system. The operating risk
control is ensured by establishing an optimal structure of the Bank’s business processes.

The Bank’s operating risk management process comprises the following stages: identification, assessment,
monitoring, control and/or mitigation of the operating risk.

For the operating risk mitigation purposes, the Bank performs regular audits in terms of compliance with
information security requirements. Besides, the Bank’s by-laws regulating bank operations are continuously ad-
justed, and the Bank continues working on optimization of information flows and internal document management
system.

The Bank seeks to identify the operating risk on a regular basis. A dedicated analytic database is kept for this
purpose specifying data on types and scope of losses by the Bank’s business areas, as well as circumstances attached
to such losses. The Bank also maintains an external operating risk data base that registers realized operating risks
in the Bank’s external environment.

For the purpose of operating risk measurement, the Bank also applies the basic method for calculation of
operating risk recommended by the Central Bank of Russia. Operating risk assessment presupposes calculation of
the value of possible losses in case operating risk is realized.

The Bank regularly monitors operating risk. The Risk Committee members and the Board of Directors of Bank
ICBC (JSC) receive reports on operating risk at least quarterly.

During the reporting period there were no changes in the Bank’s methodology of operating risk assessment
and control.

The minimum threshold requirement for capital to support current operating risk level ¢ U’t“éé“'280;6;8”i; --------- "l

ths rubles as of January 1, 2018.

To calculate the capital adequacy ratio, the operating risk value multiplied by 12.5 is Uded)
3,508,513 ths rubles as of January 01, 2018.

that constitites
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For the purpose of calculating the capital to cover the operating risk, the Bank uses the operating risk assess-
ment methods established by the Bank of Russia.

10. Information on operations with related parties of the Bank

In course of its usual business activities the Bank performs operations with its principal shareholder. Such
operations include making of settlements, granting of loans, raising of deposits, provision of guarantees, trade
financing operations and aperations with foreign currencies. in general, all operations of the Bank with the related
parties are performed on the same terms and conditions that are applicable to operations with independent parties.

In the reporting period the Bank actively worked with its parent company, ICBC Ltd., including its branches
and subsidiaries (hereinafter, the “related parties”) on the interbank lending, trade finance and foreign currency
markets.

The balances of operations with related parties as of the end of the reporting period are presented below:

As of January 01, 2018  As of January 01, 2017

ths rublies ths rubles
ASSETS
F::g; ;’ue fram credit institutions (NOSTRO) as of the beginning of the reporting 6,731,532 19,494,676
Loans issued to related parties as of the beginning of the reporting period 915,390 -
Loans issued during 2017 897,108 1,589,727
Loans repaid during 2017 1,912,498 674,337
Loans issued to related parties as of the end of the reporting period - 915,390
Funds due from credit institutions (NOSTRO] as of the end of the reporting period 2,254,924 6,731,532
LIABILITIES
iL;ggs due to credit institutions (VOSTRO) as of the beginning of the reporting pe- 8,951,261 10,350,667
Funds raised as of the beginning of the reporting period, total: 5,991,631 8,259,035
Including, subordinated loans 3,032,845 3,644,135
Funds raised during 2017 7,149,511 28,846,102
Funds repaid during 2017 . 7,325,139 32,113,506
Funds raised as of the end of the reporting period 5,816,603 5,991,631
Including, subordinated loans 2,880,010 3,032,845
Funds due to credit institutions (VOSTRO) as of the end of the reporting period 3,111,672 8,951,261
OFF-BALANCE SHEET LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

Guarantees received 1,301,585 2,358,671
Guarantees issued 876,341 804,761

The table below presents income and expenses on operations with related parties:

for 2017 for 2016
ths rubles ths rubles
Interest income 22,356
Interest expense 203,595

Net interest income {expense) «181,239

Net income from foreign exchange operations -764,647
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for 2017 for 2016

ths rubles ths rubles
Fees and commissions income 5,842 2,085
Fees and commissions expenses 4,368 813
Operating expenses - 203
Net income {expense) from related party operations -944,402 -149,232

11. Information on the employee remuneration system of the Bank

The Bank has set up a Remuneration Committee that is a speciai body subordinate to the Bank’s Board of
Directors with a competency in organization, monitoring and control of the employee remuneration system.

As of January 01, 2018, the members of the Remuneration Committee are:

Cui Liang, the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee,

Hong Guilu, a member of the Remuneration Committee,
Wang Ying, a member of the Remuneration Committee

The Committee members are not entitled to particular remunerations.

The Bank’s remuneration system applies to all the Bank’s structural subdivisions, including a Supplementary

office “GREENWOOD” and the Bank’s branch in St. Petersburg.

The table below shows information about the number and categories of employees involved in assuming risks

as of January 01, 2018.
No. { Pasition } Structural subdivision | Reason
Members of executive bodies
1 President Management team Chairman of the Management Board
2 Vice President Management team Deputy Chairman of Board of Management
3 Vice President Management team Member of the Management Board
4 Chief Accountant Management team Member of the Management Board
Other employees
1 Vice President Management team Chairman of the Credit Committee, Head supervising
operating activity
2 Vice President Management team Head supervising subdivision in charge of purchase
and sale of forelgn currency in non-cash form, bro-
kerage and dealing operations
3 Head Treasury Member of the Credit Committee with the right to
vote, head of subdivision in charge of purchase and
sale of foreign currency in non-cash form, brokerage
and dealing operations
4 Deputy Head Treasury Deputy head supervising subdivision in charge of
5 Head Operation management Head supervising subdi\j/ﬂis
and sale of foreign curt
6 Head Department for corporate busi- Member of the Credit éoi'nmitte’é%vith'?theinﬁght}t
ness vote, head of subdivision i
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funds on its behalf and at its expense, attraction of
funds of individuals and legal entities in the Russian

and foreign currency

As of January 01, 2018, the total number of employees assuming risks is 10 persons, 6 of them are the Bank’s
key management personnel. In 2017, payments to the key management personnel amounted to 80,734 ths rubles,
which equals to 17.8% in the total volume of emoluments paid to the Bank’s employees.

The remuneration structure of the key management personnel for 2017 and 2016 is shown in the table below:

for 2017 for 2016
Total payments, Share, % Total payments, Share, %
ths rubles ths rubles

Labour payment 61,679 76.4% 51,115 76.3%
Bonuses 16,743 20.7% 14,262 21.3%
Other payments 2,312 2.9% 1,617 2.4%
Including taxes and payroll contributions 10,495 - 3,686 -
TOTAL 80,734 100% 66,994 100%

The remuneration structure of other employees who assume risks for 2017 and 2016 is shown in the table

below:
for 2017 for 2016
Total payments Share, % Total payments Share, %
Labour payment 10,192 85.3% - -
Bonuses 1,545 12.9% - -
Other payments 219 1.8% - -
Including taxes and payroll contributions 1,554 - - .
TOTAL 11,956 100% - -

Structural subdivisions of the Bank in charge of risk management

List of positions of the Bank’s employees who manage risks as of January 01, 2018 is given in the table below,

No. Position Structural subdivision Reason
1 Head Internal audit Head of the internal Control Subdivision
2 Deputy Head Internal audit Deputy Head of the Internal Control Subdi-
vision
3 1 Head Financlal Monitoring Service Head of the Internal Control Subdivision
4 Deputy Head Financial Monitoring Service Deputy Head of the Internal Control Subdi-
vision
5 Chief specialist Financial Monitoring Service Employee of the Internal Control Subdivi-
sion
6 Head Internal Control Service Head of the Internal Control Subdivision
7 Controller of the Profes- Internal Control Service Employee of the Internal Control Subdivi-
sional Market Participant sion
8 Chief specialist internal Control Service Employee of the internal Control Subdivi-
sion
9 Head Risk Management Service Head of the subdivision identifying and as-
sessing risks, establishing maximum risk Val-
ues, identifying the need.in capital’ Io )
it as well as cq'htrollmg over the sai




No. Position Structural subdivision Reason
10 Deputy Head Risk Management Service Depuly Head of the subdivision identifying
and assessing risks, establishing maximum
risk values, identifying the need in capital to
cover it as well as controlling over the said
fimitations at the level of separate portfo-
lios, business dimensions and at the Bank
upon the whole
11 Chief specialist Risk Management Service Emplayee of the subdivision identifying and
assessing risks, establishing maximum risk
values, identifying the need in capital to
caver it as well as controlling over the said
{imitations at the level of separate portfo-
lios, business dimensions and at the Bank
upen the whole
12 Head Lending Limits and Operations Head of the subdivision identifying and as-
Analysis Department sessing risks, establishing maximum risk val-
ues, identifying the need in capital to cover
it as well as controlling over the said limita-
tions at the level of separate portfolios,
business dimensions and at the Bank upon

the whole
13 Deputy Head Lending Limits and Operations Deputy Head of the subdivision identifying
Analysis Department and assessing risks, establishing maximum

risk values, identifying the need in capital to
cover it as well as controlling over the said
limitations at the level of separate portfo-
lios, business dimensions and at the Bank
upon the whole
14 Senior Analyst Lending Limits and Operations Employee of the subdivision identifying and
Analysis Department assessing risks, establishing maximum risk
values, identifying the need in capital to
cover it as well as controlling over the said
limitations at the level of separate portfo-
lios, business dimensions and at the Bank
upon the whole
15 Leading Analyst Lending Limits and Qperations Employee of the subdivision identifying and
Analysis Department assessing risks, establishing maximum risk
values, identifying the need in capital to
cover it as well as controliing over the said
limitations at the level of separate portfo-
lios, business dimensions and at the Bank
upon the whole

Payroll size for these subdivisions is independent from financial results of those subdivisions {bodies) that
decide about conducting banking operations and other deals.

in calculating variable part of the remuneration, quality indicators for objectives achievement set forth in the
regulations {or similar internal documents) on the corresponding Bank subdivisions are taken into account:

a) Meeting target indicators:

- Timeliness of reporting.

b) Compliance with standards for completion of documentation;

¢) Work quality evaluation of the Bank by external auditors and internal evaluation by the Board of Directors
of the Bank:

- No negative comments;

- Minor negative comments that can be cleared in course of the work;

- Significant shortcomings.

in the total volume of remunerations paid to employees the variable part shall
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Risk management subdivisions of the Bank are not entitled to deferred remuneration types.

Variable part of the remuneration for the employees in charge of risk assumption is set in rubles. There are
no other forms of payment of the variable remuneration part.

In the reporting period all employees falling into this category in 2017 did not receive their variable part of
remuneration,

There were no guaranteed bonus payments in the reporting period,

Principal indicators and objectives of the employee remuneration system of the Bank:

e To ensure the Bank's financial stahility;

e Make the employee remuneration system compatible with the Bank’s scope and type of activities, as well
as with the Bank’s performance results and composition of assumed risks;

e Strengthen employee motivation in meeting strategic and operating objectives of the Bank;

e Ensure financial motivation of the Bank’s employees in creative and responsible approach to the assigned
tasks and duties;

s Streamlining the employee remuneration approach in the Bank;

e Optimization of planning and management of personnel expenses.

The employee remuneration system is subject to an annual review by the Board of Directors of the Bank.

In the beginning of 2018, the employee remuneration system was reviewed by the Remuneration Committee
(Minutes No. 01-18 dated January 21, 2018) and the Board of Directors. Total amount of the variable remuneration
subject to payment to the employees according to work results in 2017, including the Bank’s branch, was approved
in the amount of 50,860,000 rubles, payroll indexation was approved on the average at the rate of 3% within the
Bank, including payroll indexation for IAS and RMS heads. Scheduled payments to the employees assuming risks in
2017 according to the work flow chart on restructuring the remuneration system for the employees involved in risk
assumption were confirmed.

Instruction on changes to “Regulation on determination of employee categories in charge of risk assumption
and risk management and control” and Instruction on changes to “Regulation on the employee remunerations and
bonuses” were approved.

12. Information about operations of Bank ICBC {ISC) with non-resident counterparties

Below is information about the Bank’s operations performed by non-resident counterparties (in ths rubles).

No. Narrative Amount as of the | Data as at the be-
reporting date ginning of the re-
porting year
1 2 3 4
1 Funds on correspondent accounts with non-resident banks 2,254,946 6,733,361
2 Loans provided to non-resident counterparties, total, 6,188,964 11,379,854
including:
2.1 To non-resident banks 3,373,085 8,214,230
2.2 To legal entities {non-residents) other than credit institutions 2,815,878 3,165,624
2.3 To non-resident individuals - -
3 Debt securities of non-resident issuers, total, 1,094,565 .of00 1,088,401
including: | ' '
3.1 With fong-term credit ratings 1,094,56
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No. Narrative Amount as of the | Data as at the he-
reporting date ginning of the re-
porting year
3.2 Without fong-term credit ratings - -
4 Funds of non-residents, total, 10,009,323 16,058,404
including:
4.1 Of non-resident banks 9,082,044 15,098,012
4.2 Of non-resident legal entities other than credit institutions 927,179 861,392
4.3 Of non-resident individuals 100 -
President Li Wencong

Chief Accountant
Stamp

March 26, 2018

- N. V. Kuzmina
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